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NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Members of Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd. will be
held on Thursday, the 28th Septenber, 2016 at 3.30 p.m. at Regd. Office, “Manipal House", Manipal— 576 104 to ransact
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the Profit and Loss Account for the
vear ended on that date and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appaint a Director in place of Sri Raghavendra Nayak {DIN: 00101525} who retires by rotation, and being eligible
offers himself for reappointment.

3. To conslder ang if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the "Act”) read with Rule 3{7) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification{s) or re-enactment thereof for the fime being in force), pursuant to the recommendations of the audit
commitiee of the Boand of Directors, and pursuant lo the resolution passed by the members at the AGM held on
29.09.2015 the appointment of M/fs. Pai Nayak & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Finm Registration No. 008090S),
as the Statuiory Auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the Calendar year 2017
be and is hereby ratified and that the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to fix the remuneration payable
to them for the financial year ending March 31, 2017 as may be determined by the audit committee and agreed upon
between the auditors and the Beard of Directors.”

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
Manipal House sd/-
Manipal-576 104 T Narayan M Pal
Date:30.5.2016 Managing Dirsclor

DIN: 90101633

NOTES:

1. The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, In respect of Special
Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto and forms part of this notice.

2. Astatement giving the relevant details of the Directors seeking re-appointment under ltem Nos, 2 of the accompanying
Notica, as required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges is annexed herewith,

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 26.05.2016 to 20.09.2016
(both days Inclusive).

4. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitied fo appoint a proxy fo attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy

need not be a membaer, Proxies in order to be eifective must be received by the company not later than forty eight (48)
hours before the meeting, Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, socisties, etc., must be supported by
appropriate resplutionsfauthority, as applicable.
A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50} and holding In the aggregate not more than
10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for
any other person or shareholder.

5. Members are requested to bring their attendance slips duly completed and signed mentioning therein details of their
DP ID and Client 1D/ Folio No.

6. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled
to vote at the Meeting.

7. Ralevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and in the Explanatory Statements are open for inspection
by the Members at the Company’s Registered Office on all working days of the Company, during business hours up to
the date of the Meeting.

8. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Mesting pursuant to Section 113
of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the relevant Board Resclution
together with their respective specimen signatures authorizing their rapresentative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf
at the Maaeting.

9. The Company has transferred unclaimed dividend declared upto the financial year ended 31st March, 1955 to the
General Account of the Central Government as required by the Companies Unpaid Dividend (Transfer to General
Revenue Account of the Central Government) Rules 1978. Those shareholders who have so far not claimed or
collected their dividend upto the aforesaid financial year may claim their dividend from Registrar of Companies,
Kamataka, Bangalore,

The Company has transferred the unclaimed dividend for the financial year ended 31.03.1995 and 31.03.1997 to
Investor Education and Protection Fund set up by the Central Govt. and no claims shall be lie against the Fund or the
Company in respect of the amounts so transferred.
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10. Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to write to the Company at an early
date, s0 as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the meeting.

The

members are requested to get thelr shares dematerallzed. The company's ISIN Code INE798E01013 {CDSL)

pursuant fo change in face value.

11. The

Ministry of Corperate Affairs has teken a "Green Initiative in the Corporate Govemance® by allowing paperless

compliances by the companies and has issued circulars stating that service of notice/docurnents including Annual
Report can be sent by e-mail to its members. To support this green initiative of the Govemment in full measure,
members are requested to register their e-mail addresses in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository
through their concemed Depository Participants.

12. {a)

In accordance with the provision of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014, the sharehclders may exercise their option to parlicipate through electronic voling
system and the company is providing the facility for voting by electronic means {e-voting} to all its members,
The company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services India Limited (CDSL) to provide e-voting
facilities and enabling the members to cast their vota in a secured manner. It may be noted that this e-voting
facility Is optlonal. This facility will be available at the link www.evotingindla.com during the following voting
period:

The Instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

0]

(i)
(iif)
{v)
)

(vi}
{vii)

{viil)

(ix)
(x)

(i)

()
(xiii)

The voting period begins on 26.09.2016 at 9.30 a.m. and ends on 28.09.2016 at 5.00 p.m. During this period
shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialised form, as on the cut-off
date (record date) of 22.09.2016 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voling module shall be disabled by
CDSL for voling thersafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting
venue.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on Shareholders.

MNow Entar your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 diglts beneficiary 1D,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character GP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,

¢. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evetingindia.com and voted on an earlier
voting of any company, then your existing password Is to be used,

If you are a first ime user follow the steps given bekow:

For Members holding sharss in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both
demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number
in the PAN field.

In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0's before
the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters, Eg. If your name is
Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RAQCO00001 in the PAN field,

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/fyyyy format} as recorded in your
Bank Details | demat account or in the company records in order to login,
OR Date of

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member
idAfolio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

Blrth (DOB)

After entering these details appropriately, ¢lick on "SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are reguired to
mandalcrily enter their login password in the new password field, Kindly note that this password is to be also
used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote,
provided that company opis for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other persen and take utmost cane to keep your password confidential.

For Membeis holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice,

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

On the voling page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option “YES/NO”
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resoiution.

2
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13

{xiv)
{xv)

{xvi)
{xvii)
(vl

{xix)

(ot}

(i)

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on *SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed.

If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly

modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resclution, you will not be allowed to modify vour vote.

You can also take a print of the voles cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voling page.

If & demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification

code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles.

The m-Voting app can be dewnloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phens users can download

the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Pleass follow the instructions as

prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

Note for Non-Ingividual Shareholders and Custodians

* Non-Individual shargholders {i.e. othar than Individuals, HUF, NRI elc.} and Cuslodian are required to log on
to www.evotinglndla.com and reglster themselves as Corporates.

* A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

* After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be creatsd using the admin login and password.
The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

* The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to heipdesk.evoting@cedslindia.com and en approval
of the accounts they woulkl be able to cast their vote.

* Ascanned copy of the Board Resoluticn and Power of Attomey (POA) which they have ssued In favour of the
Custodlan, if any, should ba uploaded In PDF format In the system for the scrutinizer to verify the sama.,

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Cuestions

("FAQs™) and e-voting manual available at www.evolingindia.com, under help section or write an email to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

(a) The company has engaged the services of M/s Cameo Corporate Services Ltd., Chennai as the Authorized

Agency to provide e-voling facilities.
(b) The company has appointed Sri Ramachandra Bhat S, Practising Company Secretary, Bangalore as
‘serutinlzer' for conducting and scrutinizing the e-voting process in a falr and transparent manner.

The Securities and Exchange Beard of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number
(PAN} by every participant in the securties rmarket. Members holding shares in eléstronic form are, therefore,
requested to submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with whom they maintain their demat accounts, Members
helding shares in physical form should submit their PAN to the Company.

Members holding shares in single name and in physical form are advised to make a nomination in respect of their
shareholding in the Company and those Members who hold shares singly in dematerialized form are advigsed to make a
nomination through their Depository Participants.

ANNEXURE TO ITEMS 2 OF THE NOTICE

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Mesting
{in pursuance of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

Name of the Director Raghavendra Nayak
Director Identification Number {DIN) 00101525
Date of Birth 06.04.1973
Nationality Indian

Dalte of Appointment on Board 26.02.2007
Qualification B.Com.

Sharsholding in the Company -

List of Directorships held in other Companies {excluding -
foreign, private and Section 8 Companies)

Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit and Stakeholders’ Member : Stakeholders Relationship Commitiee
Relatienship Committees across Public Companles Member: Audit Comnlitee

There are no Inter-se relationships between the Board Members.

3
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

To,
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasurs in presenting their 33~ Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company and the
acocounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2016.

1. Finaneial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company

(Rs. in '000)

31 March, 2016 31% March, 2015
Gross Income 5585 2321
Administrative and other Expenses 2734 2480
Net f’l:oﬁl /{Loss) before Deprecialion, Lease lEquaIisalinn, 2851 (159)
provision for doubtful debts and had debts written off
Less: Depreciation 1524 16305
Add: Lease Adjustment (Credit) - (14556)
Less: Provisions & write offs of debts (net} & Prior pericd items 5256 (2761)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax and extracrdinary items 6583 853
Extraordinary ltems 1834 522
Profit (Loss) before provision for taxation 8517 1375
Provision for Taxation - -
Profit/(Loss) after provision for taxation 8517 1375
Add: balanca of Loss b/f from previous year 651461 652836
Net Loss carried forward 842944 651461

2. State of Company’s affair

Durlng the year ending 31st March, 2005 the Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement under Sacticn 391 of the
Companies Act,1956 to effect the restructure of Company's debis particularly Debentures and subordinated debts of
the Company was framed and presented before the Honorable High Court of Kamataka. Accordingly, the meeting of
the Shareholders, Debenture Holders arkd Subordinated Debt holders were held on 20th April, 2005. The schems as
proposed had provided for payment of principal in a phased manner aver 60 months from effective date and payment of
interest accrued till 30th June, 2002 within 72 months from the effective date. The Scheme as proposed do not provide
for accrual of interest after 30th June, 2002. {For the above purpose the effective date means the date on which the
Order of High Court of Karnateka sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement is filed with the Registrar of Companies in
Karnataka.)

On 10th July, 2009, Honorable High Court of Kamataka has directed the Company to submit the details of payments
made to Non-Convertible Debenture holders and subordinated debt holders from st April, 2005. Accordingly the
details were fumished to Honorable Couri. If was submitied before the Honorable Court that the Company has settled
substantial portion of Non-Convertible Debentures and Subordinated Debts and it was therefore falt that the scheme
requires to be changed having regard to the seftiements already made and quantum of non-convertible debentures
and subordinated debts remaining to be settled. Therefore the Company had proposed to withdraw the scheme of
arrangement from the Honorable High Court of Karnataka, with an option to present a new scheme of arangement.
The Honcrable High Court of Kamataka has permitted the Company to withdraw the petition, with liberty to file a fresh
petition, vide its order dated 28th October, 2009, Accordingly, the Company is exploring the possibility of propasing a
fresh petition to be filed before the Honorable High Court of Kamataka. At present the Company is concentrating only
on recovery of its dues and setting the debts.

3. Dividend
The Company has not declared any Dividend on equily shares, due to insufficient profit.

4. Reserves
During the year the Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve Account.

5. Share Capltal
The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 3iist March, 2016 was Rs.B38 Lakhs and Preference Share Capital of Rs.295
Lakhs During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares. The Company has not issued shares
with differential voting rights. It has neither issued employee stock options nor sweat equity shares and does not have
any scheme to fund its employees to purchase the shares of the Company.

4
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10.

1.

12.

13.

Diractors and Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Raghavedra Nayak, Director retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer
himself for reappointment.

Particulars of Employess

During the year under review, the Company had no employees whose remuneration exceeded the limit prescribed
pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

Meetings

A calendar of Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. During the year five Board Meetings and
four Audit Committee Meelings were convened and held. The details of which are given in the Corporate Govermnance
Report. The Intervening gap betwaen the Mestings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board has carried out an annual
evaluation of its own performanca, performance of the Diractors as well as the evaluation of the working of ils
Committees. The Nomination and Remuneration Committes has defined the evaluation criteria, procedure and time
schedule for the Perfermance Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees and Directors.

The Board’s functionlng was evaluated on various aspects, Including Infer-alia degree of fulfiliment of key responsibiliies,
Board structure and compasition, establishment and delineation of responsibilities to various Committeses, effectiveress
of Beard processes, information and functioning. Directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance and
contribution at Board/ Committee Mestings and guidance/ support to the management oulside Board! Committee
Meetings. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on key aspects of his role, including setting the strategic
agenda of the Board, encouraging active engagement by all Board members and motivating and providing guidance
to the Managing Director. Areas on which the Committees of the Board were assessed included degree of fulfillment of
key responsibilities, adequacy of Committee composltion and effectivaness of mealings.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Direclor
being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out
by the Independent Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole. The Nomination and
Remunaration Committee also reviewed the performance of the Board, its Committees and of the Directors.

Corporate Governance

Corporate governance represents a set of systems and practices to ensure that the affairs of the company are managed
in a way that ensures accountability, transparency and faimess in all transactions. Your company is fully committed to
pursue goals and objectives which are in the best interests of stake holders. The company aims at achieving highest
standards of corporate governance. The company has Board Committees for diffarent matters and subjects. These
committess also maks their contribution to better corporate governance. Also, there is a system of intemal audit in
the company which Is conducted by an independent firm of chartered accountants. The company also reviews the
corporate govemnance practices with references to the practices obfaining in the comporate sector and the regulatory
developments. The company has complied with not only statutory requirements but also, voiuntarily adhered to a set of
strong corperate govemance practices.

Remuneration Policy & Managerial Rermuneration

None of the Directors of the Company, who may be a Managing or Whole-time Director of the Company's, have

recelved any remuneration, Including comrigslon from the Company during the year.

None of the Directors of the Company have receivad any remuneration or commission from any Holding Company

or Subsidiary Gompany, service contracts, nofice period, severance fees, fixed component and perfermance linked

incantives etc,

Detalls of Subsidlary/Joint Ventures/Assoclate Companles

The Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies.

Auditors

a. The Auditors, M/s Pai Nayak & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Udupi retire at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment to hold office till the conclusion of the 34th AGM to
be held in the Calendar year 2017 subject to ratification in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

b. In respect of the Qualification/Observation made by the Auditors vide “Basis for Qualified Opinion™ , "Emphasis
of the Matter”, and Para 2, 3(e), 3(f}, 3(g} 3(i) (1), 3(1))(2) and 3(i}{3} of the "Repert on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of “Report on Financial Statements™ and Clause Nos.1,5,8,16 of Annexure “A” to the Auditors
Report and Qualification given under Basis for Issues of Qualified Opinion under Annexure “B” for the Auditors
Report, the clarifications given vide Note Nos.2.01, 5.01, 23.01, 23.01(j), 23.02, 23.06, 23.08, 23.11, 23.13, 23.14,
23.15 and 23.16 are sef explanatory.
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14.

15.

18.

17.

18.

19.

Secrotarial Audit Report
In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, Sri § Ramachandra Bhat, Practicing Company
Secretary (Membership No. 04441, C P No. 5421} from Bangalore has been appointed as Secratarial Auditor of the
Company. The report of the Secretarial Auditor is enclosed as Annexure Il to this report. As per Section 134 (3f) of the
Companles Act, 2013 Company 1s required to make comments on the adverse remarks / comments on the Secretarial
Auditors Report.
1. As per the Secrsetarial Auditor's Report placed before the Board, the Secretarial auditcr have opined that the
Company has not published the unaudited financial results in news papers as per the provisions of Clause 41 of
the Listing Agreements and Regulation 33 of SEBI [LODR] Regulations, 2015.
Your Directors reiterate that due to poor financial conditions, the company is not able to publish the resulls in news
papers. However once the financial conditions of the company revived, company will arange to publish the same.
2. As per the Secretarial Auditor's Report placed before the Board, the Secretarial auditor have opined that the
Company has not appolnted Key Managerlal Person (Company Secretary).

Your Directors reiterate that company was not engaged in any business consequently there were no incoms.
Due to poor financial conditions, the company was forced to reduce the number of branches and alse number of
employesas. This Is the maln reason for not appolnting a whole time company secretary. However as and when the
company engages itself in a proper business, it would certainly comply with this requirement.

Internal Audit & Controls

The Company has established and maintained adequale intemal controls over the financial reporting. Intemnal controls
have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation
of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. The Company has
internal control systern commensurate with the size and nature of the business. The Company engages M/s. N P Pai
& Co., Charterad Accountants, Udupi, {Firn Registration No.115271wW/Membership No.039351) as its Infernal Auditor.
Durng the year, the Company continued to lmplement thelr suggestions and recommendations to Improve the control
environment. Their scope of work includes review of processes for safeguarding the assets of the Company, review of
operational efficiency, effectiveness of systoms and processes, and assessing the intermal control strengths in all areas,
Internal Auditors findings are discussed and acted upon and suitable corrective actions taken as per the directions of
Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations.

Vigll Mechanlsm

The Company has adoptad a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy.

RIsk Managemant Pollcy

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy In accordance with the provislons of the Act and Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement. It establishes various levels of accountability and cverview within the Company, while vesting
identified managers with responsibility for each significant rigk,

The Internal Audit Department facilitates the execution of Risk Management Practices in the Company, in the areas
of risk identification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation and reporting. Through this programme, each Function and
Unit addresses opportunities and risks through a comprehensive approach aligned to the Company's objectives.
The Company has laid down procedures to inform the Audit Committee as well as the Beard of Directors about risk
assessment and management procedures and status. Sustainability is embedded in the Corporate Enterprise Risk
Management pregramme, which gives an opportunity to increase the effectiveness of risk management practices and
for improving business efficiency. The Company's sccial and environmental policies correlate strongly with the risk
management strategy and ulimately the financial performance. This risk management process, which is facilitated by
internal audit, covers risk identification, assessment, analysis and mitigation. Incorporating sustainability in the process
alse helps to align potential exposures with the risk appetite and highlights risks associated with chosen strategies, The
current risk slate and the comprehensive risk policy have been further redefined during the year. The major risks forming
part of the Enterprise Risk Management process are linked to the audit universe and are covered as part of the annual
risk based audit plan.

Extract Of Annual Return

As required pursuant to section 92(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2094, an extract of annual return in MGT @ as a part of this Annual Report as ANNEXURE | .
Materlal changes and commlitments, If any, affecting the financlal posltion of the company which have occurred
betwaen tha end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and the date of
the report and changaes In nature of business, If any

There are no such material changes to be reported in this regard and there are nc change in nature of business.

Deatalls of algnificant and materlal orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals Impacting the golng
concern status and company’s operations in future

Your Directors wish to state that there have been no significant or material orders that were passed by the Regulators
or Courts or Tribunals which may impact the going concem status and operations of the Company in future.
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20. Particulars of loans, guaranteas or investments under Section 186

21,

23.

25,

27.

28.

29,
30.

Details of Loans: Not applicable ko NBF Companies since same are given in the ordinary course of business. Further,
no loans are given to any party.

Detalls of Guarantee/Security Provided. : Not applicable to NBF Companies. However no such guarantee or security
provided. Investments made are of the nature quotediunguoted equity shares. Particulars of such investments are
provided in the financial statements vide note Nos. 8.01.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The company did not have any activity in relation to conservation of energy or techriology absorption. The company had
no foreign exchange eamings or oulgoings during the year under repori.

Detalls In respect of adaquacy of Internal financlal controls with reference to the Financlal Statements

The Company has In place adequate Internal financial controls with reference te financial statements. During the year,
such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operalion were observed.

Deposlts

The details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act,-

(a) accepted during the year; Nil

{b) remained unpaid at the end of the year; Rs.13.53 Lakhs

(c) whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year and if
8o, number of such cases and the total amount involved:

(i} at the beginning of the year; Rs.13.53 Lakhs
(i) meximum during the year; Nil
(i} at the end of the year; Rs.13.53 Lakhs
The details of deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the Act;

. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with relatad partias

All related party lransactions that were entersd info were on an arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business
and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). There were no materially
significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company during the year that would have required shareholders
approval under the provisions of the Act. Details of the fransactions with related parties are provided in the Note
No, 23.04 of accompanying financial statements. Form AOC-2 pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3} of section 134 of
the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith marked as Annexure 1.

Corporate Governance Certificate

The Compliance certificate from the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding compliance of conditions of
corporate governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing agreement shall be annexed with the report.
Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report. The details of which are given in the
Corporate Govemnance Report.

Statutory Disclosures

In terms of the provisions of Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules, 1875 as amended, the names and cther parliculars of the employees are set out in the annexure
to the Directors’ Report. However, as per the provisions of Section 219 (b) {iv) of the said Act read with Clause 32 of
the Listing Agresment, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to all the members of the
Company and others entitled thereto. Any member interested in obtaining such particulars may write to the Company at
the registered office of the Company.

Obligation of Company under the Saxual Harassmant of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has 2ero folerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 20113 and the Rules there under. The Company
has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2014-15,

Corporate Soclal Responsibllity (CSR) : Not applicable

Human Resources

Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets.

Your Company continuously invest in atfraction, retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A number of

7
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M.

32,

33.

34,

programs that provide focused people attention are currently underway. Your Company thrust is on the promotion of

talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement.

Directors’ Responsibllity Statement

Thae Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act,

2013, shall state that—

{a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

{b) the directors had selectad such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
astimates that ara reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

{c} the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provislons of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concam basis; and

{e) the directors, in the case of a listed company, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such intemal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

{f) the diractors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operaling effectively.

Transfar of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

As all the matured deposits, debentures and debts were already claimed, the question of transfer of such amounts to

Investor Education and Protection Fund does not arise.

Listing with Stock Exchanges

The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2016-2017 to Bombay Stock Exchange,

Mumbai where the Company’s Shares are listed.

Acknowledgements

An acknowledgement to all with whose help, cooperation and hard work the Company is able to achieve the results.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
so-

(T Narayan M Pai)

DIN : 00101633

Managing Director

Place : Manipal
Date : 30.5.2016
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Annexure |

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2016

Pursuant to Section 82(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of tha Company
{Management & Administration) Rules, 2014,

|.  REGISTRATICN & OTHER DETAILS

1. | CIN L65910KA1984PLCO05988
2. | Registration Date 29.3.1984
3 Name of the Company Manipal Finance Corporation Lid.
4, | Category/Sub—category of the Company -
5. | Address of the Reglstered Office & Contact Manlpal House, Manipal — 576 104
Details Udupi Dist. Karnataka. Ph.0820-2570741
6. Whether listed company Yes
7. | Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & | Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
Transfer Agent, if any Registrar & Transfer Agents : Unit : Manipal Finance
Principal Office: Subramanian Building,
No. 1, Club House Road
CHENNAI - 600 002 Email: cameo@cameoindia.com
Ph:28460380 {5 lines)

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10% or mora of the total
tumover of the company shall be stated)

Sl. Name and Description of maln NIC Code of the '
No. Products / Services Product/Service | % to total tumover of the Company
1. NBFC K5 100%
lIl.A) Shareholding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share HoldIng
No. of Shares held at the beginning of | No. of Shares held at the end of the
Category of the year [As on 31 March,2015] year [As on 31 March, 2016] % Change
Shareholders % of 8t of during
Demat | Physlcal Total Total | Demat | Physlcal | Total Total | the year
Shares Shares

A. Promoters
1) Indian
&) Individual/

HUF/Directors - 1269936 ( 1269936 | 15.15 —| 1269936 | 1269936 | 15.15 -
b) Central Gowt. - - - - - = - = =
c) State Govt.(s) - - - - - - = - =
d) Bodies Corp. - 1603895 1603895| 18.14 —| 1603895 | 1603895 | 19.14 —
e) Banks / FI - - - -
f) Any other - - - -
Total shargholding of
Promoter (A) - 2873831 2873831| 34.29 —| 2873831 | 2873831 34,29 -
B. Public

Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - = - - -
b) Banks / FI - 300 300 0.04 - 300 300 0.04 -
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the baginning of
the year [As on 31 March,2015]

No. of Shares held at the end of the
yaar [As on 31 March, 2016]

Demat

Physlical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

% Change
during
the year

c) Central Govt.

d) Slate Govl.(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g)Flis

h) ForelgnVenture
Capital Funds

i) Others (spacify)

Sub-total (B)1):

300

300

0.01

300

300

0.01

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

1250

81202

82542

0.98

1250

81292

82542

0.98

i) Cverseas

b) Individuals

1} Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital up
to Rs. 1 lakh

97746

5307458

5405204

64.49

102047

5302257

5405204

64.49

0.06

Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1
lakh

-

111780

111780

1.33

111780

111780

1.33

c) Others (specify)

Non Resident Indians

6300

6300

0.08

6300

6300

0.08

Overseas Corporate
Bodies

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies - D R

Sub—total (B)(2):—

98996

5506830

5506830

65.71

104197

5501629

560826

65.77

0.06

Total Public
Shareholding {B}=
(BY1}+ (B)(2)

98996

6507130

5507130

65.71

104197

6501929

5606126

66.83

0.06

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
{A+B+C)

98996

8380061

8380961

104197

8380061

8380961

100
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B) Shareholding of Promoter
Shareholding at the beginning of the year| Shareholding at the end of the year
Sl. Sharsholdsr's Name % of total % of Shares % of total | % of Shares
No. No. of Shares Pledged / No.of | Shares Pledged /

Shares of the encumberedto | Shares of the encumbered
Company total shares Company | to total shares
1. | Kamalaksha Pai K 4793 0.06 0 4793 0.06 0
2. |Narayan M Pal T 6357 0.08 0 6357 0.08 0
3. | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 950 0.1 0 950 0.01 4]
4. |.Jayanthi R Pal 5494 0.07 0 5494 0.07 0
5. | Vidya 1297 0.02 0 1297 0.02 1]
8. | Sunlthi P Nayak 6272 0.07 0 6272 0.07 0
7. | Chetan B Pai 2307 0.03 0 2307 0.03 1]
8. | Sangeetha 3000 0.04 0 3000 0.04 4]
9. |Narayan M Pai T 83112 0.55 0 83112 0.99 0
10. [ Shankamarayan Aithal K 200 0.00 0 200 0.00 0
11, | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 552 0.01 0 552 0.01 o]
12, | NarayanMPai T 8356 0.10 ] 8356 0.10 0
13. [ B Manjunath Shenal 868 oM 0 868 0.01 0
14. | Ranga Pai M 5500 0.07 0 5500 0.07 0
i5. | Sumnan Pal M 3500 0.04 0 3500 0.04 4]
15, | Ashok Pai T 2215 0.03 0 2215 0.03 0
17. | Neetha 1215 0.01 0 1215 0.01 ]
18. | Sunil 1515 0.02 0 1515 0.02 0
19. | San|ay 1215 0.0 0 1215 0.01 0
20. | Manjunath Shenai B 4868 0.08 0 4868 0.06 4]
2. | Sharath lnvestments Ltd. 15183 0.18 0 15183 0.18 0
22. [ ICDS Lid, 449163 5.36 0| 449163 5.36 1]
23, | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 50 0.00 0 50 0.00 0
24. | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 27 0.00 0 27 0.00 4]
25. | Vijayalaxrl N Pal 486 0.01 0 486 0.01 0
26. | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 1130 0.1 0 1130 0.01 0
27. | Savoy Agencies P Ltd. 137718 1.84 0| 137718 1.84 0
28. |Narayan M Pai T 797 0.01 0 797 0.01 0
28. | Rajesh Pai T 1800 0.02 0 1800 0.02 0
30. | Manipal Industries Lid. 12650 0.15 0 12650 0.15 0
31. | TVP Consultants Lid. 701073 8.37 0| vo1073 8.37 o
32. | Manipal Sowbhagya Nidhi Ltd. 212956 254 0| 212956 2.54 0
33. | Manipal Prakashana Pvt Lid. 35588 0.42 0 35589 042 0
34. | Praman Capital Market Sarvices Lid. 28063 0.33 0 28063 0.33 4]
35. | Vijayalaxml N Pal 273660 3R 0| 278660 332 0
36, (SunilPai T 278950 3.33 0| 278950 3.33 0
37. | Narayan M Pai T 278250 3.32 0| 2v8250 332 0
38. | Narayan M Pai T 278000 3.32 0| 2v8000 3.32 0
39. | San|ay Pal 700 0.01 0 700 0.01 0
40. | Sunil Pai 2500 0.03 0 2500 0.03 0
41, | Sanjay Pal 2500 0.03 0 2500 0.03 0
42. | Sunil Pai 1300 0.02 0 1300 0.02 0
43. | Sanjay Pai 1200 0.1 0 1200 0.01 0
44, | Manipal Sowbhagya Nidhi Ltd. 11500 0.14 0 11500 0.14 o]
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C) Changs in Promoters’ Sharehclding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
- beginning of the year during the year
! Particulars y
No. % of total ‘ % of total
;‘h‘:r‘;i Shares of the g&r‘;: Shares of the
Company Company
1. | Atthe baginning of the year - - - -
2. | Date-wise Increase/Decrease In Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the remsons for Increase/ & & £ &
decrease {e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity ele.)
3. | Atthe end of the year - - - -

D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
{Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Shareholding at the beginning| Cumulative Shareholding
the year during the year
5l For Each of the Top 10
No. Shareholders % of tatal No. of % of total
No. of Shares| Shares of the Shares Shares of the
Company Company
1. At the beginning of the year 191979 230 191979 2.30
2, Date-wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters
Sharehalding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decraase {e.g. allotment/ transfer/bonus/sweal T - B -
equity etc.}
3. At the end of the year 191879 2.30 191879 2.30

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sharehelding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
of the year during the year

L1 Shareholding of each Directors and each - <
No. Key Managarial Parsonnol % of total No. of % of total

No, of Shares| Shares of the Shares Shares of the
Company Company

1. | Atthe beginning of the year 659665 7.87 659665 7.87
2. Date-wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters

Sharehclding during the year specifying the reasons

for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/bonus/ - - - -

sweal equity etc.)
3. | Atthe end of the year 659665 7.87 659665 7.87

F} Indebtedness — Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Rs. in ‘000
Secured Loans Unsecured . Total
excluding deposlts Loans Deposits Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i} Principal Armount 51786 191123 1353 244262
ii} Interest dus bul nol paid 15350 12629 250 28129
lil) Interes! accrued but not due

Total {I+1+iii} 87136 203652 1603 272391

Change in Indebiedness during the financial year - - - -

* Addition - - - -

* Reduction 5155 13557 — 18712

Net Change -

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year - = - —
1) Principal Amount 47766 178434 1353 227553
I} Interest due but not paid 14215 11661 250 26126

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -

Total {i+ii+iii} 81881 190095 1603 253679

12



23X Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

IV. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL —
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Nct applicable since no salary to Managing Director

B. Remuneration to other director(s):
S1. No. Partlculars of Remuneration Name of Diractors Total Amount
1. Independent Directors Vinoda C Sherigar —
Fee for aftending board committee meetings Rs. Rs
Commission 12,000 12,000
Others, please speciy — —
Total {1) - —
2. Other Non—Executive Directors — -
Fee for aftending board committee meetings 12,000 12,000
Commission — —
Others, pleasa specify - -
Total {2) 12,000 -
Tolal {B)=(1+2) - -
Total Managerial Remuneralion 12,000 12,000
C. REMUNERATION TQO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
sl Key Managerial Personnel
No. Partlculars of Ramuneration
CEOQ [+ CFO T. Sanjay Pal Total
1. Gross salary - - Rs. 2.10 Lakhs Rs. 2.10 Lakhs
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in _ _ _ _
Section 17(1) of the Ingome-tax Act, 1861
(@) Valus of perquisites w's 17(2) - _ _ _
Income-tax Act, 1961
(&) Profits in ligu of salary under Seclion _ _ _ _
17(3) income-tax Acl, 1961
2. Stock Gplion - - - -
3. Swaat Equity — - - -
4, Commission - - - -
— as % of profil — - - -
othars, specify... - - - -
5. Others, please specify — - - -
Total - - Rs. 2,10 Lakhs Rs. 2.10 Lakhs
V. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Detalls of Penalty/
Type S | i | st | oGy | ey
foes Imposed COURT] {glve Detalls)
A. COMPANY
Ponalty - - - -
Punishment - - - —
Compounding - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - -
Punishment - - -
Compounding - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - —
Punishment - - - -
Compounding - - - -
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Annexure — I

FORM NO. ADC -2
{Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contractsfamrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to

in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain amms length transaction under third proviso

thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis: Nil

2. Details of contracts or arangements or transactions at Amm’s Isngth basis : All related party fransactions as covered ufs
188 of the Act were entered into during the period prior to 1/4/2015. Therefore making any further disclosures in Form
AOC-2 does not arise.

Annexure—lll

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016
[Pursuant to Section 204{1) of the Companles Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companles
(Appolntment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Te,

The Membaers,

Manipal Finance Corporation Limited
REGD. OFFICE: “MANIPAL HOUSE"
MANIPAL — 576 104 {Udupi Dist.}

We have conducted the secretarlal audit of the cornpliance of applicable statutory provislons and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Manipal Finance Corporation Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinlon thereon.

Basad on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and ether records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 complled with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting rmadse hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Manipal

Finance Corporation Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign

Direct Investment, Overseas Ditect (nvestment and External Commercial Borrowings;

The Reserve bank of India Act 1934 and all guidelines and prudential norms framed thereunder to an extent applicable;

The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1992 ('SEBI Act') viz...

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (Enforced from 1st December, 2015};

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 (till 14th May, 2015)
and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (Enforced from
15th May, 2015);

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employea Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidslines, 1999;

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

fy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Dslisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009, and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

14
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7. Cenlial Excise Act, 1944
8. Customs Act, 1962
9. Ingome Tax Act, 1961
10. Karnataka Tax on Professions, Trade, Callings & Employment Act, 1976
11. Employes Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
12. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
13. Employee State Insurance Act, 1548
14. Facteries Act, 1948
15. Payment of Bonus Act, 1972
16. Minimum Wages Act, 1548
17.  The Payment of Wages Act, 1936
18. The Trade Unions Act, 1926
19. Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923
20. Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
21. Matemity Benefils Act, 1961
22. Sexual Harassment at Workplace (Pravention) Act, 2013
23. Contract Labour {Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1579
24, The Apprenticas Act, 1961
25. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976
26. The Environment (Protectlon) Act, 1986
27. Industrial (Development & Regulation} Act, 1951

We have also examined compliance with the applicabla clauses of the following:
{i) The Listing Agreemants entered info by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,

Standards, etc. meantioned above except 1o the axtent as menfioned below:

1. The company has nof published unaudited quarterly financial resulls in newspapers as per the provisions of Clauge 41
of the fisting agreement.

2. The company has nof appointed key Managerial person (Company Secretary) in accordance with the provisions of
section 2031} of the Companies Acf, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Manageriai Personnel) Rules, 2014,

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with minimum strength as per section 148{1)(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Pursuant to section 149(4) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors} Rules 2014, there has to be at least 02 persens to ba appeinted as Independent Directors on the
Board of the company. Accordingly, The Company has appointed Two Independent Directors on the Board of the company.
The changes in the composition of the Board of Dlrectors that took place durng the perlod under review were carried out In
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Mestings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and cobtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda ftems before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the mesting,

Maijority decision is carried through and thera were no dissenting members for any item.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations
of the company to menitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines,

We further report that during the audit period there were no instances of

Public/Right/Prefarential issue of shares/debentures/sweat equity, stc.

b. Redemption/buy-back of securities

¢. Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013
d

e

d

. Merger / amalgamation f reconstruction, ete.
. Foreign technical coflaborations
Ramachandra Bhat 8
Company Secretary
FCS No.: 4441
CP No.: 5421
Place : Bangalore
Date :30.05.2016

This report is to be read with our letter of avan date which is annexed as Annexure A and foims an integral part of this report.
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To,

ANNEXURE - A

The Members,

Manipal Finance Corporation Lid.
REGD. OFFICE: “MANIPAL HOUSE”
MANIPAL - 576 104 {Udupi Dist.)

1.

2,

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secrelarlal reconds based on our audit.

We have followed the audit praclices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basls to ensure that comect facts
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our oplnlon.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriatensss of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.
Where eaver required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of management. Qur examinalion was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Ssecrelarial Audit report is neither an assurance as lo the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Ramachandra Bhat S
Praclicing Company Secretary
FCS No.: 4441

Place : Bangalore C P No.: 5421
Date :30.05.2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Code

The Directors present the Company’s report on Corporate Governance as on 31st March, 2016 as required under Regulation
34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirermnents) Regulations, 2015.

1. Phllosophy:

The Company believes in good corporate governance and has taken efiorts to implement the same wherever possible in the
present circumstances. The Board of Directors has always had adequate competent independent Directors. For effective
discharge of its functions and proper deliberations, the Board has constituted committees from time to time. Adequate
disclosure and information are provided to the Board as well as its Committees. Aclive participation of the independant
Directors at the Board and Committee Meetings has always bean the nemm.

2. Board of Directors:
The Board comprised of thrae Directors, of which cne Is execulive and two non-axecutives including a woman director.

The non-executive Directors are eminant perscnalities with experience in Managemant and Finance. The Board oversees
as fo how the management serves and protects the long-term interest of all the stakeholders.

i) Number of Board Mesting and Attendance of Directors:
The Board met 5 times during financial year 2015-2016. The details are as follows:

Date of Meating Board Strength No. of Directors present
29th May, 2015 3 2
29th June, 2015 3 3
14th August, 2015 3 2
14th November, 2015 3 2
13th February, 2016 3 3

The last AGM was held cn 29th September, 2015 and 1 out of 3 Directors are attended the AGM.
iiy The Composition of Board of Directors, their directorships in other companies and memberships in committees and the
details of their attendance at the Board Meetings are given below:

No. of No.of Board commlttees
v | Movacn | cimetoct, | Mastings | Aeneancs | Mo e | 1 whih Crarman (0
. attended Membker (M)

1. 8 T MNarayan M | Promoter

Pai Executive 5 Yes Nil kI (9)]
2. Sri Raghavendra | Non-Executive

Nayak 3 No Nil 2(M)
3 Smt Vinoda C Non-Executive

Sherigar 5 No Nil 2{M)

3. Audlt Commlttee:
The Audit Committee comprised of the following members of the Board:

Stl T Narayan M Pal, Managing Director

Sri Raghavendra Nayak, Member

Smt Vinoda C Sherigar, Member

The role and terms of reference of Audit Cornmittee cover the areas mentioned under Regulation 72 of the SEBI {Listing
Obligaticn & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 179 of the Companies Act, 2013, besides cther terms
referred to by the Board of Directors from time to time. During the year,the Committee met on 29.05.2015, 14.08.2015,
14,11.2015 and 13.02,2016. Sri T Narayan M Pai, Managing Cirector is the Compliance Officer.

Attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee Meeting:

Meeting held on No. of Members present
29.05.15 2
i4.08.158 2
14.11.15 2
13.02.16 3
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4. Nomination and Remuneration Committea:
This Committee will atiend fo the functicn relating to review of remuneraticn policy, changes to be effected in the policy from
time ko time and cther aspacts of remuneration to the Directors and Key Managerial Personnal from time to time.

S T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director is the only whole-time Director of the Company and he does not draw any
remurieration.

Details of remumeration for the year ended 31st March, 2016:
i} Whole-Time Director: Nil
iy Non-Executive Directors & Independent Directors: Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors were paid
remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending Board Meetings.
i} Key Managerial Personnel: details of remuneration paid Chief Financial Officer of the Company has been fumished in
the Annexure |- Form MGT-9 which forms part of the Boards’ Report.

5. Stakeholders Relatlonshlp Committea:

The Committes approves transfer, transmission, issue of duplicate Debenture Cenificates and Sub-Crdinated Debts, review
and redress sharsholders grievances/complaints on matters relating fo transfer of shares, debentures, sub-ordinated daebts,
non-receipt of Balance Sheet etc.

Mr T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director is the Compliance Officer.

MNumber of Shareholders Complaints received : Mil
MNumber of Shareholders Complaints seftled : Nil
MNumber not solved to the salisfaction of the shareholders : Nii
Number of pending Share ransfers : Nil

6. Annual General Mestings:
The last three Annual General Meetings were held in Manipal House, Manipal = 576 104,

AGM Date Time Special Resolution required
No.
30 2710972013 3.30 p.m. NIL
31 30/09/2014 3.30 p.m. Yes
32 29/09/2015 4.30 p.m, Yes

All the resolutions as set out in the respective notices were passed by the shareholders.

Postal Ballot:
The Notice of 33rd Annual General Meeting does not contain any item which required approval by Postal Ballot.

7. Disclosures :
There were no transactions of material nature with the Directors or the Management or their relatives duving the year.

There were no instances of non-compliance on any matter related to the capital markets during the last three years.

8. Related Party Transactlons:

All related party transactions that were entered into were on an arm'’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business and
were in compliance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act™). There were no materally significant
related party transactions made by the Company during the year that would have required sharehclders’ approval under
the provisions of the Act.

9. Whistle Blower Pollcy:
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to report
their concemns about unethical behavior actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The
Policy provided for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides
for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied
access to the Audit Committee. Your company hereby affirms that no complaints were recsived during the year undar raview.
10. Compliance with Accounting Standards:
In the praparation of financial statements the Company has followed the Accounting Standards Referred to in Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes to
the Financial Statemants,
11. Means of Communlcation:

a. Quarterly / Half Yearly financial results are sent to the Stock Exchange, Mumbai where the shares of the Company

are listed. The Company is not having its own web-site.
k. Company has not made any presentations to any Institutional Investors/Analyst during the year.
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12. Management Discussion and Analysis Report:

Review of Oparations:

The Company is engaged in the business of Hire Purchase and Lease finance and has completed 33 years of operation in
this fisld. During the year 2015-20185, the Company has eamnad a net profit of Rs.85.17 Lakhe as against the net profit of
Rs.13.75 Lakhs in the previous year 2014-2015.

Hire Purchase and Lease finance business is facing severe competition and margins are under great pressure. In the
aftermath of stringent Prudentlal Norms promulgated by the RBI, the NBFCs all across the country suffered a severe set
back. Their borrowing capacity is drastically curtailed. With no avenues for further growth, together with ever increasing
defaulters in the list of corporate clients, triggered the downfall in the performance of the NBFCs. The situation that has
arisen In your Company is In no way different. In spite of these hurdles, the Company has trled its best to salvage the
situation by reduding its operational cost on all fronts.

The Company is pulting in serious efforls to recover NPA accounts. Criminal complaints under Section 138 of Negotiable
Instrument Act are also lodged simultanecusly against sech defaulters whose cheques were dishonoured. The Company is
making gocd progress on the Recovery Front.

The Company has appointed M/s N P Pai & Co. Chartered Accountants, Udupi {Firn Regn. No. 115271W) as its internal
Auditor.

The discussion on finangial performance of the Company is covered in the Director's Report. There has heen no materigl
development on the human rescurce front during the year. The number of employees employed as on 31st March, 2016
was 3.

During the year ending 31st March, 2005 the Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement under Section 391 of the Companies
Act, 1956 to effect the restructure of Company's debts particulady Debentures and subordinated debts of the Company
was framed and presented befors the Honorable High Court of Karnataka. Accordingly, the meeting of the Shareholders,
Debenture Holders and Subordinated Debt holders were held on 20th April, 2005. The scheme as propesed had provided
for payment of principal in a phased manner over 60 months from effective date and payment of inferest accrued till 30th
June, 2002 within 72 months from the effective data. The Scheme as proposad do not provide for accrual of interest after
30th June, 2002. (For the above purpose the effactive date means the date on which the Order of High Court of Kamataka
sanctioning the Scheme of Amangement Is flled with the Registrar of Companies in Karnataka.)

On 10th July 2009, Honcrabie High Court of Kamataka has directed the Company to submit the details of payments made
to Non-Convertible Debenture holders and subcrdinated debt holders from st April, 2005. Accordingly the details were
fumished to Honorable Court. It was submitted before the Honorable Court that the Company has seftled substantial
portion of Non-Convertible Debentures and Subordinated Debts and it was therefore feft that the scheme requires to be
changed having regard to the ssttlements already made and guantumn of non-convertible debentures and subordinated debts
remaining to be settled. Therefore the Company had proposed to withdraw the scheme of arrangement from the Honorable
High Court of Karnataka, with an option to present a new scheme of arrangement. The Honorable High Court of Karmataka
has permitted the Company to withdraw the petition, with liberty to file a fresh petition, vide its order dated 28th Cctober,
2009. Accordingly, the Company is exploring the possibility of proposing a fresh petition to be filed before the Honorable
High Court of Kamataka.

13. Human Resource Development:

There has been no material development on the Human Resources front.

14. General Sharehclder Informatlon:

a) Annual general meeting 1 33rd Annual General Mesting
Day & Data : Thursday, 29th of September, 2016
Time 1 330 pm,
Venue . Manipal House, Manipal
Manipal = 576 104, Udupi District
b) Financial Calendar : 1st April to 31st March
¢} Date of Book Closure 1 26-08-2016 to 29-08-2016 (both days
inclusive)
d) Dividend : No Dividend has been recommended by

the Board of Directors for the year ended
3ist March, 2016.

e) Registered Office :  Manipal House House, Manipal—576 104,

f) Listing on Stock Exchanges . The equity shares are listed on Bombay
Stock Exchange Lid., Mumbai

Note: Annual Listing Fes has been paid upto date.

¢) a) Stack Code 1 507938 (BSE)
b} Demateriallzation of Shares :ISIN No. INE 798E01013 (CDSL)
Ason 31stMarch, 2018, 1,04, 197 No. Equity Shares forming 1.24% of the share capltalofthe Company stands dematerialized
({Previous Year: 98 996 No. equity shares forming 1.18% of the Share Capital).

h) Market Price Data : Not Available.
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i} Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for Physical and Demat Shares:

Camaeo Corporate Services Lid.

Subramanlan Bullding

No. 1, Club House Road

Chennal — 800 002

Phone : (044-28460390), Emall : Investor@cameoindla.com

]} Share Transfer System:

As directed by SEBI, Company has appointed Camec Gorporate Services Lid., V Floor, Subramanian Building, No.1 Club
House Road, Chennai 600 002, as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent under demat and physical form effective March,

2003, Till this date Share Transfers etc. were done in-house once in two weeks. The shareholdersfinvestor's Grievance
Committee approves all share transfer and transmissicn upon its receipt from the Registrars.

k} Distribution of Equity Shareholding as on 31st March, 2016

Sl Shareholding No. of Share amount Parcentage of

No. of nominal valua (Rs.) Shareholders {Rs.) Shareholding

1. Up to 5,000 8334 22779060.00 27.180

2. 5,001 to 10,000 1587 134820860.00 16.088

3. 10,001 to 20,000 570 8308450.00 9913

4. 20,001 to 30,000 166 4161880.00 4,966

5. 30,001 to 40,000 52 1893740.00 2.260

6. 40,001 to 50,000 32 1548680.00 1.848

7. 50,001 to 1,00,000 37 2528370.00 3.017

8. 1,00,00C & above 20 29106470.00 34.729

TOTAL 10798 83809610.00 100.000
1} Pattern of Equity Shareholding as on 31st March, 2016

Shareholders No. of Shares hald Parcentage
Foreign Body Corporate 0 0
Directors, Relatives, Friands and Associates 2873831 34.29
Financial Institutions o} 0
Banks 4] 0
Other Corporate Bodies 68778 0.82
Others 5438352 64.89
TOTAL 8380961 100.00

m) Plant Locations: NIL
n) Address for Investor's Correspondence:
Secretarial Department
Manipal Finance Comporation Lid.
Regd, Office: Manipal House, MANIPAL - 576 104
Phone: {0820) 2570741
DECLARATION
As provided under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) all Board Members and

Senior Management Parsonnel affirmed compliance with Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd., Code of Conduct and Ethics for
the year sended 31st March, 2016.

For Manipal Finance Corporation Lid.,

sd/-
Place ; Manipal T Narayan M Pai
Date :30.05.2016 Managing Director
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WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR/CFO CERTIFICATION
To

The Board of Directors
Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd.,
Manipal
We Managing Director appointed in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify
fo the Board that:
a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief.
i) these statements do not contain any materially unfrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading.
i) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accountng standards, laws and regulatons.
b) To the best of our knowledge and bellef, no transactions are entered nto by the company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

c} That we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of the intemal control systems of the company.

d) Woe have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Commiftes:
i} No significant changes have taken place in intemal control process during the year.
iy No significant changes in accounting pelicies during the year.

For Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd.

Sa~ Sdi-
Chief Financial Cfficer Managing Director
Place : Manipal
Date :30.05.2016

Cartificate on
Compllance of Corporate Governance

To: The Members of Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

| have examined the Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by of Manipal Finance Corporation Limited
{“the Company”) as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Gompany with Stock Exchanges in India for
the pericd from April 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015 and as per the relevant provision of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (*Listing Regulations”) as referred in Regulation
15(2) of the Listing Regulations for the period from December 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Govermnanca is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited
to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governancs. It is nelther an audit nor an expression of the opinion on the financlal statements of the Company.
In my opinion and to the best of our informatlon and explanations glven to me, | certify that the company has complled
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and Regulation 17 to 27
and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46{2} and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations for the
respective periods of applicability as specified under paragraph 1 above during the year ended March 31, 2016, except that,

® The Company has not appointed Company Secretary — Key Managerial Person {KMP)

| state that,

* In respect of share helder grievances received during the year ended March 31, 20186, no shareholder grievances are
pending against the Company as on 31st March, 2016 as per the records maintained by the Company and presented to
the Investors/Shareholders Grievance Committes.

* In respect of investors grievances as regards to rapayment of debentures/deposits on maturity | am informed that the
same is being repaid in terms of the scheme of arrangement sanctionaed by the Hon'ble High Court of Karmataka.

| further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viahility of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Ramachandra Bhat S
Company Secretary
FCS No.4441

C P No.:5421

Place : Manipal
Date : 30.05.2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
To the Members of

Manipal Finance Corporation Limited, Manipal

Report on the Financial Statements

VWe have audited the accompanying financial statements of MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED (“the company™),
which comprises tha Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 20186, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statemant for the
year anded, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Respenslbllity for the Financlal Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in secticn 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”)
with respect to the preparation and presentaton of these financlal staternents that glve a true and falr view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsiblity also Includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records In
accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assels of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and cther imegularilies; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and deslgn, implementation and maintenance of adequalte infamal financial confrol, that
wers operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or ermor.

Auditor’s Responsibllity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stafements based on our audit. We have taken info account the
provisions of the Act, the accounting and audifing standards and mafters which are required {o be included in the audif report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requiremanis and plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures fo oblain audif evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Fnancial
staternents. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materisl
misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give true and
fair view in order to design audif procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company’s
Directors, as wall as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the financial stalements.

Basis for the qualified opinion

1. We draw aftention fo Note No. 23.02 of the financial statements. The Company has incumed losses and fts majorify
of funds are biocked in Non Performing Assets, raising & doubt about the Company to confinue as & going concem.
The Company has presenfed a scheme of arrangemant for restructure of liabilities as detailed in Note No. 5.01of the
financial staternents and subgequently withdrawn the same, for reasons glven therein. The Gompany is exploring the
possibility of presenting the new scheme of arrangement, as detailed in the aforesaid Nofes. The account, however
have been prepared on a “going concem basis” in view of management perception as detailed in Note No. 23.02 as
aforesaid. However we are unabie to comment on the uffimafe reallsabllity of Company's assels Inciuding the Fixed
Assefs under lease. Accordingly we are also unable to comment on the Company’s ability to seffle its debisfiabilities
(inciuding Deposits, Subordinated debis and Secured Redeemable Debentures.}

2. We draw the altention lo Note 5.0 of the Financial Statements. The Company has stopped (i} repayment of matured
debentures & matured subordinated debis and (ii) payment of interest on debentures and subordinated debts from 1st
day of July, 2002 and proposed a scheme of arrangement before the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka, as referred
fo in the aforesaid Note (which is since withdrawn and we are informed that the Company is exploring the possibility
presenting & new scheme of arrangement). Further the Company has also stopped repayment of deposits matured for
rapayment from the aforesaid date. All the debts of the Company i.e. debeniures, subordinated debts and deposits are
matured for repayment. The Company has provided for interest on deposits/debentures/debis up fo 30th June, 2002 and
nof thereafter.

There ara also many instances of seftlement of debenturas, debts and public deposits at the discounted rates with partizifull
waiver of imarest, which has been done with mutusl consent. Wae are also informed that the remeining depositors/debenture
holders/debt holders have approached the Company for settlement of the dues and the Company is in the process for the
same.

As per the informalion given fo us various consumer courts (inciuding the Appellate Authorifies/Courts acting under the
Consumer Protection Act) have passed the orders, for the repayment of cerfain deposits/debentures/debts with interest and
other costs. The detailed information on these orders have not been made available to us. However we are informed that
the Company has seffied the dues of such customers in many cases, which also includes sefflement at discounted rates
with partial/fult waiver of interest and many of the remaining such persons have approached the Company for sefflement.
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We draw the altention fo the Staterent made by the Management of the Company in Note No. 5.01 of the Financial
Statement which is as follows: “Considening the facts that the Company has seifled the dues of depositors/debenture
holders/debt holders at the discountsd rafes as staled above, thatthe remaining cusformsrs have approachad the Company
for selflement of their dues, that the orders issued by the various consumer courts including the appellate authorities/courts
therein, that the Company has seftled the many of such consumer court casas, thal the fofal debts of the Company have
reduced considerably because of seftlement as aforesaid and that the Company is exploring the possibility of framing the
new scheme of arrangement, il is not feasible for the Company {o ascertain accurately its liability on any given dafe”.

Considering all the facts as given above, we qualify our opinion that it Is not feasible for us to ascerfain accurately the liability
of the Company as on the date of the Balance Sheef.

Qualified Opinlon
I our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the offect of the
matier described in the Basis of Qualified Opirion paragraph, the financial statements give the informalion required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India:
{a) inthe cass of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016;
() in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Proiit for the year ended on that date;

and
(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasls of matter
We draw the aftention to Note 2.01 of the Financlal Statements. The Company during the year with a view towards
restructuring its liabilities has setiled deposits/debentures/subordinated debis at discounted rates. The same has been
done with due consent of the parties to deposits, debentures and debts. The interest write back arising out of such
settlement is considered as Extraordinary Incoma in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Principal write back arising out
of such settlement is considered as capital recsipt and taken directly to Capital Reserve {viz: Capital Reserve 2} in the
Balance Sheet. This has been done as per the accounting policy followed by the Company, as stated in note no. 23.01
(J). The Company had made slmllar settiements during the earller years also, by glving the slmller accounting treatment.
Our opinion is not qualified on this matter.

2. We draw the attention to Note 23.11 of the Financial Statements. The Company has eamed Profit during the year and
also during Immedlate pravious financlal year i.e. year ending 31st March, 2015 due to exceptional Income as stated In
Note 20 and Extracrdinary Income as stated in Note 21,

Report on other Lagal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order”), issued by the Central Governmant of India
in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 'Aanexure A’ a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, fo the extent applicable.

2. Interms of press release issued by Reserve Bank of indig dated 27.06.2001, we state that:

8) The Cerfificate of Registration as issued by the Reserve Bank of india is not in foree, since same was cancelled
during December 2004.

b) The Company has not obfained credif rafing.

¢} The capital adequacy ratio is negatlve and accordingly the Company’s Loans, advances and investments are above
tha credit exposure fimits.

d) The Company has not filed the prudential retumns and annual retums as per revised directives, However the
Company has flled such refurns as per the directives as prevalled il 31st March, 2011 l.e. prudential retums on haif
yearly basis and annual return once & year.

8) The public deposits are matured for repayment, but remained unpaid by the Company. However the company has
seftied some of the deposits af discounled rafes without inferest. The Company has not provided/paid interest on
deposits after 30th June, 2002,

f} The Company has not created floating charge in favour of the depositors, on the statufory liguid assets invested.

g) The Company has nol closed any of its branches during the year. Therefore the question of making any commaents
therein does nof arige.

3. As required by section 143(3) of tha Act, we report

a8 Wa have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of cur knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from
our examination of those books.

¢ The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreament with the books of account.

d In gur opinlon, the aforesald financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e Qur Qualifications as given under paragraph tifled "Basis for qualified opinion™ may have adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company, if the management perceplion as detailed in note 23.02 of financial statement does not
materialize. However our observalion as given under paragraph titied “Emphasis of matter” will not have adverse
effect on the functioning of the Company.

f. The quelification/observations refating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph” and “Emphasis of Maiter paragraph” above.
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g. We are of the opinion that the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Direclors of other

public companies under 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the reason that the Comparny has not fully discharged
its ligbility towards maiured deposits/debeniures/subordinated debts. However the management of the Company ane
of the opinion that its direcfors are not disqualified u/s 184(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the reasons as stated in
nofe 23.06 of the financial statement.

. With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in’ ‘Annexure B'; and

i. With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit

and Auditors) Rules 2014 in our opinioh and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

1) The Company has stated vide 23.05 and 23.13 of the financial statement that the impact of pending liligations on
its financial position is not ascerfainable for the reasons as sfaled in the aforesaid notes.

2) The Company did not have any long-term coniracls including derivatives confracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses, which has bean confirned by the management vide note 23.14 of the financial
sfafement.

3) The Company has nof transferred any amount to the credit of investor Education and Protection Fund during the
year under audit, for the reascn as given by the management vide note 5.01 and 23.15 of financlal statement.
Accordingly commenting on delay in transferring the amounts to the aforesaid fund does nof arise,

For PAlI NAYAK & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration Numbar: 0090805

sdr-
AMMUNJE YENKATESH NAYAK
Partner
Membership Number ; 204685

Place of Signature: MANIPAL
Date : 30.05.2016

ANNEXURE “A"” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
({Issued to the Members of MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED})
REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING

“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF EVEN DATE

As raguired by the Companies (Auditor's Repart) Order 2016 (hereinafter referred to as “the order”), issued by the Gentral
Government under section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, and on the basis of such checks as we considered
appropriate, and according to the information and explanations given to ug, we further report that

1.

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particutars including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

b} According to the information and explanations given to us the fixed assets other than those under lease, have been
physically verifiied by the management during the peried and ne material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification as compared to available records. In respect of leased assets physicai verification has not been done
during the year.

¢} According to the information given to us and on the basis of our examination, all title deeds of free hold immovable
properties ara held in the name of the company. The title deeds of lease hold immovable properties are supported
by Memorandum of agreement entered into with the lessor. We are informed that the original titte deeds in respect
of immovable properties of land and buildings {both freehold and lease hold), whose title deeds have been pledged
as security for debentures, are lying with the Debenture Trustee, as evidenced by the records produced before us and
accordingly we have given our report as ahove, based on the examination of copies of the above said documents.

. According o the information and explanations given to us, the inventories which tonsist of shares and securities have

bean physically verifled by the management durlng the year at reasonable Intervals. No rmaterlal discrepancy was
noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management as compared to book records.

As per the information and explanation given to us, the company during the year has not granted loans, secured or
unsecured toffrom companies, firms, LLP or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act. Herce further commaenting on clause {jii} of para 3 of the said order does not arise.

Agccording to the information and explanations given o us, the Company has not given loans, made any investments
or provided any guarantee or security during the year under audit. Accordingly the question of reporting on compliance
of section 185 and 186 of the Act does not arise. Therafore the paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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5

10.

i1,

12,
13.

14.

15.

16.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanaticn given to us the Gompany has complied with the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the provisicn of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 20143,
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules 2014 and Non Banking Financial Gompanies (Reserve Bank Directions)
with regard to acceptance of deposit from public subject to the exception of renewel of deposits up to 18.01.2000 with
maturify dates falling beyond 31st December, 2003, nonpayment of principalinterest as and when it became dus.
Qur other observations are being made in main audit report under the head 'Basis for qualified opinion™. However no
fresh deposits accepted/renewed during the year under audit. We are informed by the management that the company
has not received any order by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or
any Gourt or any other Tribunal in respect of deposils, excepl the crders from various Consumer Courls (including
the Appellate Authorities/Courts acting upon under Consumer Protection Acl) regarding repayment of proceeds of
debentures/debis/deposits with interest and other costs. The detailed information on these are not made avallable to
us. Therefore we are not in a position to comment on the compliance of aforesaid orders. However we are informed
that the Company has setfled the duss of many of such cases, which alsc includes seftlament at discounted rates. The

Company has also received the order from Reserve Bank of India during December 2004, canceling the certificate of

ragistration.

The Central Govarmment has not prescribed malntenance of cost records under clause (d) of Sub-section (1) of Section

148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the question of making further comments therein does not ariss.

a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues {i.e. provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, customs duty, excise
duly, cess, value added tax and other statutory dues) with the appropriate authorilies, and there are no amears of
outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financlal year concemed for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

b} According to the records of the company there are no dues of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Custom Duty, Service Tax,
Excise Duly, Cess, value added tax which havae not been deposited dus to any dispute.

Based on our audit and according fo the information and the explanations given fo us, we are of the opinion thaf the

company has during the year defaulled in payment of dues lo the debeniure holders amouniing Rs. 67981 thousands

(P Y Rs.67136 thousands}. Interest on debentures not paidiprovided since 1sf day of July, 2002, However a scheme

of arrangement was submitted before the Hor'ble High Court of Kamataka to repay the debenture with Interest thereon

in the manner mentioned in the Nofe No. 5.01 lo the financial statements. Buf the scheme is since withdrawn and
the Company is exploring the possibilify of presenting a new scheme of arrangemeni, as detailed in Nofe No.5.01 as
aforesaid.

In our opinion and according fo the information and explanation given to us, no moneys were raised by the Company by

way of inltlal pubjlc offer or further public offer (including debt Instruments} during the year under audll. The Company

has also not raised any term loan during the year under audit. Hence further commenting on ciause (ix) of para 3 of the
said order does not arise.

Based on the audit procedures parformed and the information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by

the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year, nor have

we been Informed of such case by the management.

According to the information and explanation given to me, no managerial remuneration has been paid during the year

under audit. Therefore the clause (xi) of para 3 of the order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act wherever applicable and the

delails of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on cur examination of the records of the Company,

the company has not made any preferential altotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible

debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xiv) of the Order is nct applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on cur examination of the records of the Company,

the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directars or persons connected with him. Therefore, the

question of compliance with Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(xv)

of the Order Is not applicable.

The company was registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. However The Certificate of

Registration as issued by the Reserve Bank of India is not in force, since same was cancelled during December, 2004.

For PAlI NAYAK & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Registration Number: 0030805

sdf-

Place of Signature: MANIPAL AMMUNJE VENKATESH NAYAK
Date: 30.05.2016 Partner

Membership No.: 204685
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ANNEXURE "B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Issuad to the Members of Manipal Finance Corporation Limited}
REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 3(h) UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF EVEN DATE

Report on the Internal Financial Conteols under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ManipalFinance Corporation Limited {“ihe Company”) as of
31 March, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial stalements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responslbllity for Internal Financlal Controls

The Company’s managemen is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on the intemal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI'). These
responsibilities include design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and eirors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial infommation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibliity

Our responsibility is t0 express an opinion on the Company’s imemal financial comirols over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducied our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note") and the standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be presciibed under section 143(10) of the Comnpanies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and raintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respecis.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatemend of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
of error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis kor cur audit opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Intarnal Financlal Controls over Financlal Reporting

A company's Internal financial control over financlal reporting Is a process deslgned to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
rellability of financlal reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internat financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
acconrdance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
of timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent LimHation of Intemal Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management ovemide of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detecled. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subjec! to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or ihat the degree of complance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Issue of quallfled opinlon

The Company has not verified the Fixed Assets under lease falling under the head “leased machineries and equipment” & “leasad vehicles
and fumiture” of Note 6 of the Financial Statement.

Qualified Opinlen

In our opinlon except for tha effect of the matter described In the Basls for issue of Qualified Oplinlon paragraph, the Company has, in all
maierial respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operaling effectively as at 31 March, 2016, based on the intemal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the
company considering the essential components of intemat control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Cver
Financial Reporting issued by the Institule of Ghartered Accountants of India.

For PAlI NAYAK & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Registration Number: 0090905

sd/-

Ammunje Venkataah Nayak

PLACE : UDUPI Partner (M. No. 204685)
DATE :30.05.2016

26



3¥X Manipal Finance Corporation Limited CIN No. L65910KA1984PLC005988

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2016

(Rs. in '000)
Particulars ':f:e 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :
1. Shareholders’ Funds
a) Share Capital 1 1,13,310 1,413,310
b) Reserves & Surplus 2 (3,69,907) (2,56,597) (3,85,819) (2,72,509)

2. Non-current Liabilitias

Other Long Term Liability 3 50,387 50,362
Long term provisicns 4 441 50,828 441 50,803
3. Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities 5 2,65,464 2,65,464 2,83,501 2,83,501
TOTAL 56,695 . 61,785
B. ASSETS:
1. Nen-current Assets
a) Fixed Assets:
Tangible Assets 6 46,339 47,863
b) Other Non-current Assets 7 Ba9 47,228 1,717 49,580
2. Current Assats
a) Inventories 9,198 9,203
b) Trade Receivable - -
¢) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 370 173
d) Short term Loans and Advances 11 2,741 2,441
@) Other Current Assets 12 158 12,467 398 12,215
TOTAL 50,695 61,795
OTHER DISCLOSURES TO ACCOUNTS: 23
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Place : Manipal As per our report of even date
Date : 30" May, 2016 For PAlI NAYAK & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 009090S
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sdr-
T Narayan M Pai Vinoda Sherigar T Sanjay Pai Ammunje Venkatesh Nayak
Managing Director Diracter Chief Financial Officer Partngr
DIN: 00101633 DIN:07224755 Membership No.: 204685
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CIN No. L65910KA1984PLC005988

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31.03.2016

(Rs. In '000)
Particulars flote 2015-18 2014-15
I. REVENUE
Revenue from Operations 13 1,195 1
Other Income 14 1,805 1,847
TOTAL REVENUE 3,000 1,848
. EXPENSES
Changes in Inventorles of stock In trade 15 - -
Employee Benefit Expenses 16 639 758
Finance costs 17 410 472
Depreciation and Amertization Expense 18 1,524 16,305
Less: Lease adjustment 1,524  {14,558) 1,749
Other Expenses 19 1,685 1,252
TOTAL EXPENSES 4,258 4,229
Profit (Loss) Before Exceptlonal and Extraordinary tems (1,258) (2,381)
and Tax
Excegptional items (Income) (Net) 20 (7,841) {3,234)
Profit (Loss) Before Extracrdinary items and Tax 6,583 853
Extraordinary Items (Income) 21 (1,934) (522)
Profit before Tax 8,517 1,375
Tax Expense - =
Profit after Tax for the year 8,517 1,375
Eaming Per Equity Share (Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each) 22
Basic/Diluted Earning per Share 0.79 0.10
{before extraordinary Hems)
Basle/Dliuted Earning per Share 1.02 0.16
{after extraordinary items)
OTHER DISCLOSURES TO ACCOUNTS: 23
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Place : Manipal As per our report of even date
Date : 30" May, 2016 For PAl NAYAK & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 06090905
S Sd/- Sdr- Sl
T Narayan M Pal Vinoda Sherigar T Sanjay Pal Ammunje Venkatesh Nayak
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer Partner

DIN: 00101633

DIN:07224755

Membership No.: 204685
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23X Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

CIN No. LE5910KA1984PLC005988

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH, 2016

{Rs. in '000)
Dascription As at 31.3.20186 As at 31.3.2015
A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items ; 8,583 853
AdJustments for :
Depreciation 1,524 16,305
Dehit/(Credit} of lease adjustments - {14,556)
Interest income from investments/Bank Deposits (212) (158)
Dividend received (283) (283)
Gratuity Fund asset recognizad {12) {11)
Provisions and write off of debts (net of reversal) {5,2586) (2,761)
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,344 (611)
Adjustments for changes In working capltal:
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables 4,874 2,439
(Increase)Decrease in inventories 5 3
Increase/{Decrease) in trade payables 675 82
Cash Generated from operations 7,898 1,913
Interest paid {69) (45)
Direct taxes (paid)/refund 50 (44)
NET CASH (USED INYFROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7,879 1,824
B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Recsipt / (Payment) of lease security deposit 25 409
Fixed Deposits with Bank Realised (Made} 840 -
Interest Racaived 484 3
Dividend Reseived 283 283
NET CASH (USED IN)FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,632 895
C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(Decrease) in Subordinatad Debts (2,415) (2,227)
Increage/(Decreasa) in N.C.D's (6,898) {483)
NET CASH (USED INYFROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (8,314) {2,710}
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 197 (120}
Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 173 363
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equlvalents 370 173
Notes:

1.
2. Cash Flow statement is being prepared under “indirect Mathod™ as laid down under Accounting Standard 3.

Pravious Year's figures are regrouped, rearranged and raciasslfied wherever necessary.

3. Cash and Cash equalents does not Include term deposht kept with Banks which are kept for maturity period beyond 3
months/earmaked bank balances. These are disclosed in Note No.7 & 12 of Balance Sheet.

Sar- Sar- Sar-
T Narayan M Pal Vinoda Sherigar T. Sanjay Pal
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer
{DIN: 00101633} (DIN;07224755)
Place : Manipal
Date : 30" May, 2016
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For PAI NAYAK & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registraticn No.: 0080908

Sd/-

Ammunje Venkatesh Nayak

Partner

Membership No.: 204685



23X Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

Notes to Accounts Forming Part of Balance Sheet as on 31% March, 2016

{Rs. in '000}
31.03.2018 31.03.2015
NOTE 1:
SHARE CAPITAL
(also refer Note 1.01 to 1.03 below)
Authorised Capital :
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each 100,000 100,000
20,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 sach 20,000 20,000
39,00,000 Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 30,000 30,000
150,000 150,000
Issued, Subscribed & Pald-up :
83,80,961 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 83,810 83,810
(Previous year 83,80,961 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid)
29,50,000 11% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 29,500 29,500
Rs. 10 each fully paid
(20,50,000 Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares are issued
to Preference Shareholders of 17% Redesmable Cumulalive Preference
Shareholders in consideration of their redemption on the following dates: 20,00,000
Shares on 18" January, 2001 & 8,50,000 Shares on 6" September, 2001)
TOTAL 1,13,310 1,13,310

Note 1.01: Reconclllation of Number of Shares

Ag at March 31, 2016

As at March 31, 2015

Number of Amount  Number of Amount
A. EQUITY SHARES Shares Shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year 83,80,981 83,810 83,80,881 83,810
Adjustments during the period - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year §3,80,961 83,310 83,80,961 83,810
B. PREFERENCE SHARES )
11% Non-Cumulative Prefarence Shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year 29,50,000 29,500 29,50,000 29,500
Adjustments during the period - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 29,50,000 29,500 29,50,000 29,500

Note 1.02: Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Shares
Equlty Shares:

The equity shares having a par vaiue of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for cne vote per each share held.
The dividend if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharsholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, excapt In the case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equlty shareholders are eliglble
to receive the remaining assets of the Company (afier distribution of all preferential amounts including payment to the

preference shareholders) in proportion to their shareholding.
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Preference Sharea:

Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares shall be redeamable at par after the expiry of 12 months but not later
than 20 years from the respeclive dates of allotment at the option of the holders of such Shares by giving 3 months notice
or at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The shares are entitled for prefarential right over dividend (befora the equity
shareholders) at the rate of 11%, which is to be proposed by the Board of Directors,which is subject to the approval of the
shareholdsrs, in the ensuing Annual General Mesating, except in the case of payment of dividend as “interim dividend”.
However the shares are Non-Curnulative and therafore the shareholders are not entitied to carry forward the dividend of a
year to the forthcoming year/s, in case the same is not declarad in a year. In the event of liquidation, the such shareholders
are eligible to receive the face value (after distribtuion of all preferential amounts) before the distribution of assets to the equity
shareholders. In case the assets available are not sufficient to cover up the face value, then the same will be disiributed in
proportion to their shareholding, if the surplus available, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

Note 1.03: Detalls of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares In the company

Number of Number of

Shares Percentage Sharss Percentage
Equity Shares:
M/s TVP Consultants Limited, Chennai 701,073 8.37 7.01,073 837
Mr. Narayan M Pai T Manipal 5,56,250 8.64 5,56,250 6.64
M/s ICDS Ltd., Manipal 4,49,163 5.36 4,498,163 5.36
Preference Shares:
Sumukha Trust, Manipal 29,50,000 100.0D 29,50,000 100.00
(Rs. in '000)
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
NOTE 2:
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Capilal Reserve 1
Same as last Balance Shest 1,503 1,503
Capital Reserve 2 {refer note 2.01 below)
Qpening Balance 1,96,338 1,984,065
Add: Transferred during the year 7,395 2,03,733 2,273 1,96,338
Share Premium Account {same as last Balance Sheet} 28,995 28,985
Revaluation Reserves
Opening Balance 33,184 33,707
Less: Transfarred during the year - -
33,164 33,707
Less: Prior period adjustment {refer note 6.05) - 33,164 (543) 33,164
Special Reserve (3ame as last Balance Sheet) 4,000 4,000
{refar Note 2.02 below)
General Regerve (same as last balance sheet) 1,642 1,642
Surplus (Deflclt) In Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (651,461) (852,836)
Preht for the Year 8,517 (642,944) 1,375 {651,461)
(369,907) {385,819)

Note 2.01: The Company during the year with a view towards restructuring its liabilities has settled deposits/debentures/
subordinated debts at discounted rates. The same has been done with due consent of the parties to deposits,
debentures and debts. The Interest write back partaining to deposits/debentures/subordinated debts Rs.19,34
thousands (P Y Rs. 522 thousands) is treated as Extraordinary Income in the Profit and Loss Account. Principal
write back arising out of such setement Rs.73,95 Thousands (P Y Rs. 22,73 thousands) is considered as
capital recaipt and taken directly to Capital Reserve (viz: Capital Reserve 2) as above. This has been done as
per the accounting policy followed by the Company, as stated in note ng, 23.01 (J). The Company had made
similar setlements during the earlier years also, by giving the similar accounting treatment.
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Note 2.02: Special reserve was created during earlier year/s, pursuant o Reserve Bank of India (Amendment} Act 1997,

{Rs. in "000)
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
NOTE 3:
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITY
Advance for sale of property {refer Note 3.01 below) 39,950 39,950
Lease security deposit — Premises (refer Note 3.02 below) 10,437 10,412
50,387 50,362

Note 3.01: Advance for Sale of Property as disclosed above represents amount received in advance in respect of the
immovable property (free hold} agreed to be sold. The proceeds of the Advance amcunt has been ulilised by
the Company to reduce its debts.

Note 3.02: The breakup lease security deposit (premises) is as follows: due to related parties Rs.75,00 thousands, (P Y
Rs.75,00 thousands), due to others Rs.29,37 thousands (P Y Rs.28, 12 thousands)

NOTE 4:
LONG TERM PROYISIONS
Provision for employee benefits

Provision for Leave Szlary (refer note 4.01 below) B3 as
Provision for Gratuity {refer note 4.02 below) 353 353
441 441

Note 4.01: The liability in respect of leave sncashment, provision made on an estimated basis., considering the fact the
amount Involved thereln is not materal.

Note 4.02: The Company has made the provision of Rs.353 thousands towards gratuity in respect of deficit of Present
valus of obligations over the fair value of Plan Assets, duting the year ending 31st March, 2009. The
Management is of the opinion that the provisoins so made is adequate, considering the fact that “Fair value of
Plan Assets is more than the “deficil of Presenl value of obligations™ as on 31st March, 2016,

NOTE 5:
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
{also refer Note No. 5.01 to 5.05 below)

a. Unpald matured unsecured Public Deposis 1,353 1,353
Interest accrued on above 25D 250

k. Unpaid matured Secured Non-Convertible debentures 47,766 51,786
Interest accrued on above 14,215 15,350

¢, Unpaid unsecured Subordinated Debts 1,786,434 1.91,123
Interest accrued on abave 11,661 12,529

d. Other Payables; Liabilities for expenses 348 343
Lease security Deposit — Leasing 1,340 1,340

Other [tems 10,097 0,427

2,685,464 2,83,501

Note 5.01: The Company has stopped accepting/renewing deposits, debentures and subordinated debts with
effect from 1st day of July, 2002. Therefore and also considering the fact that the public deposits
accapted by the Company are fully matured, the Company has not created the ficating charge in favour
of the depaositors, on the siatutory liquid assets invested in terms of directives issued by Reserve Bank
of India.

During the year ending 31st March, 2005 the Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement under
Section 391 of the Companies Act, 1956 to effect the restructure of Company’s debts particularly
Debentures and Subordinated Debts of the Company was framed and presented before the
Honorable High Court of Kamataka Accordingly the meseting of the Shareholders, Debentures
Holders and Subordinated Debt holders were held on 20th April, 2005. The scheme as proposed
had provided for payment of principal in & phased manner over 60 months from the effective date
and payment of interest acgrued till 30th June, 2002, within 72 months from the effective date. The
scherne as proposed, do not provide for accrual of inferest afier 30th June, 2002, (For the above
pupose the effective date means the date on which the Order of the High Court of Kamataka
sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement is filed with the Registrar of Companies in Karnataka.)
On 10th July, 2009, Honorable High Court of Karnataka has diracted the Company to submit the details of
payments made to Non Convertible Debenture holders and subordinated debt holders from 1st April, 2005.
Accordingly the details were fumished to Honorable Court. It was submitted before the Heonorable Court
that the Company has settled substantial porticn of Non Convertible Debentures and Subordinated Debts
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Note 5.02:

Note 5.03:

Note 5.04:

Note 5.05:

and it was therefare felt that the scheme requires to ba changed having regard to the seltlements already
made and quanturn of non convertible debentures and subordinated debts remaining to be settled. Therefore
the Company had proposed to withdraw the scheme of arrangement from the Honorable High Court of
Kamataka, with an option to present a new scheme of arrangement. The Honorable High Couit of Karnataka
has permitted the Company to withdraw the petition, with liberty to file a fresh petition, vide its order dated
28th Octobar, 2009. Accordingly the Company is exploring the pessibility of proposing a fresh petition to be
filed before the Honorable High Court of Kamataka.

The total of the principal sum and interast due in respect of Public deposits/debentures/subrodinated debts
as on 31st March, 2002 {i.s. as on the last date of the financial year, immediately preceding the year in which
the Company has stopped payment of its debts} was Rs.1,07,44,26 thousands. The Company has setted
the major portion of the aforesaid dues from time to time, at the discounted rates (which includes setlement
of principal at discounted rates and partialffull waiver of interest). Out of the aforesaid amount, a sum of
Rs.25,36,79 thouands (P Y Rs.27,23,91 thousands) is remained unpaid as on the date of the Balance Sheet,
thereby the liability of the Company reduced considerably over the period of time.

Further there are many instances, where the Company has received the orders from various Consumer
Courts {including the Appellate Auhcrities/Courts acting under the Consumer Protection Act), regarding the
repayment or proceeds of debentures/debts/deposits with interest and other costs. However the many of
such depositors/debantureholders/debt holders have approached the Company and Company has settled
their dues at the muiually agreed rates, which also includes seftiement at discounted rates. Many of the
remaining such customers have approached the Company for settienent.

The Company is continuing to put mora efforts on realisation of the dues, sale of assets etc., so that its debts
can be settled at the earliest possible date. The remaining depositors/debenture holdersidebt holders have
approached the Company for settlement of their dues and the Company is in the process for the same,
Considering the above facts, the Company has not provided/recognised for interest after 30th June, 2002,
on deposits/debentures/subordinated debts and interest on advances taken on such instruments. All the
aforesaid deposits/debentures/subordinated debts are fully matured for repayment. Any interast paid over
and above the provision mada lill 30th June, 2002, charged to statement of profit and loss as Finance cost
under Note no,17.

Considering the facts that the Company has settled the dues of depositors/debenture holders/debt holders
at the discounted rates as stated above, that the remaining customers have approached the Company
for settlement of their dues, that the orders issued by the various consumer courts including the appellate
authorities/courts therein, that the Company has settled the many of such consumer court cases, that the
total debts of the Company reduced considerably because of settlement as aforesaid and that the Company
is exporing the possibility of framing the new scheme of arrangement, it is not feasible for the Company to
ascertain accurately its liability on any given date.

The Company has in view of the above and also considering the fact that there are no unclaimed liabilities,
the matured debentures, matured deposits, matured subordinated debts and interest payable inciuding
unencashed interest cheques on such deposits/debentures/debts has been considered as “not due to be
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund”,

Other itemns include balance lying unpaid after adjusting deposits with loans borrowed against it. For the
reasons as given above, the same has not been considered as amount due to Investor Education and
Protection Fund.,

Unpaid Secured Non-convertible Debentures are secured by mortgage on Land & Buildings (Free hold and
Lease Hold) situated at Udupi District of State of Karnataka, State of Goa, Nasik District & Mumbai in State
of Maharashira and flcating charge on receivables and book debts. The debentures were redeemable at par.
The whole of the debentures are matured for repayment. Further the Company has not provided any interest
on such debentures after 1st day of July, 2002, as detailed in Note 5.01 above, Therefore the question of
disclosure as to rate of interest etc. does notarise. In the opinion of the Management, the Market Value of the
security after considering provisions made in the books and also the preperty agreed o be sold as detailed
in note 3.01, offered to the holders of the aforesaid Debenture is sufficient to cover the liability.

The balances held under “unpaid matured unsecured public deposits®, “unpaid matured secured non-
convertible debentures®, “unpaid unsecured subordinated debis”, interest accrued on the aforesaid deposit!
debenture/subordinated debts and "Other Payables” are subject to confirmation.

The Company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosure relating to amounts unpaid as at the
year end together with interest paid/payable etc. as required under the aforesaid act and Schedule Il to
Companies Act, 2013 under the aforesaid Act has not been given,

Other item also includes balance lying unpaid afler adjusting deposits with loans borrowed against it, tax
deducted at source remitted subseguently, other amounts received in the ordinary course of business, which
are not material in nature etc.
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23X Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

(Rs. in '000)
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
NOTE 7:
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Term Deposit with Nationalised Banks, with maturity period
beyond 12 months 860 1,700
(kapt as SLR with Resarve Bank of India)
Net Asset Gratuity Fund Trust 29 17
889 1,717
NOTE 8:
INVENTORIES
Stock in Trade (Shares) (refer Note 8.01 balow) 9,144 9,144
Stock of Stationery 54 59
9203

9,188

Note 8.01: The Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realsiable value except In the case of unquoted shares.
Unquoted Shares held as inventories valued at lower of cost and breakup value. The list of Shares held as stock in trade is

as below:
Fully paid 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Equity Shares  No. of Total No. of Total
each of Rs. Shares Value Shares Value
Equity Instruments (Quoted)
ICDS Limited 10 53,531 * 53,531 *
Praman Capital Markel Services Limited 10 10,000 * 10,000 *
Arvind Limited 10 9 * 9 *
Modern Threads {I) Limited 10 150 * 150 *
Rajinder Stee! Limited 10 100 * 100 *
Lloyds Steel Industries Limited 10 100 1 100 1
Sangeetha Granltes Limited 10 500 * 500 *
Sub Total (A) 64,390 1 64,380 1
* Markel vaiue of these shares taken as “Nil’, since these shares are not actively fraded.
Preference Shares (Unquoted)
Triveni Engineering & Industries Ltd. 10 30 1 30 1
(12% redeemable cumulative)
Sub Total {B) 30 1 30 1
Equity Inatruments (Unquoted)
Manipal Housing Finance Syndicate Limited 10 6,949,100 9,037 6,99,100 9,037
Karnataka Rubbers Limited 100 50 - S0 -
Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited 25 1,000 25 1,000 25
Manipal Sowbhagya Nidhi Limited 1 2 - 2 -
MPL Enterprises Limited 10 13,382 80 13,382 80
Sub Total (C) 7,13,534 9,142 7,13,534 8,142
Grand Total (A+B+C) 7,77,954 9,144 7,77,954 8,144

Aggregate Value of: 1. Unquoted Shares Rs.9143 thousand s (P Y Rs.9143 thousands).
2. Quoted Shares Rs.1 thousands (P Y Rs.1 thousands). Market value of quoted Shares Rs.1

thousands (P Y Rs.1 thousands)
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(Rs. in '000)

31.03.2016

31.03.2015

NOTE 9:

TRADE RECEIVABLE (also refer note 9.01 below)

Unseacured

Stock on Hirs {outstanding for a pericd exceeding
6 months from the dale they are due for payment}

(Al agreement value less amount realised and unexpired
hire charges)

Consldered Doubtful

Less: Provision made

Lease rent raceivable:

(Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months
from the date they are due for payment)

Unsecured Considered Doubtful

Less: Provision made

Note 9.01: The balances in Stock hire and Lease rant receivable ara subject to confirmation.

97,542

97,542

15,669

15,669

1,12,385

1,12,385

17,676

17,676

NOTE 10:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(also refer note 10.01 and 10.02 below)

A) Cash in hand

B) Balance with banks

in Current Accounts

Note 10.01:

Note 10.02:

Cash and Cash equivalents does not include Term Deposits kept with a maturity pericd of beyond 3 months,

365

370

165
173

earmarked balances with banks and bank deposits held as margin money or security against borrowings
efc. The same are being disclosed in Nole No.7 or 12 as the case may be, as detailed in note no. 10.02

below.

The details of total cash and bank balances is as below {including earmarked bank balances, bank deposits

held as security etc.)

Cash and Cash equivalents (as per Note 10 above)

Bank balances {(Non-current} {as per Note No. 7 above)

Bank balances (Current) (as per Note No. 12 below)

36

370

860

1286

173
1700
66
1939



23X Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

(Rs. in 000)
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
NOTE 11:
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(also refer Note 11.01 to 11.03 below)
Secured loans:
Considered Doubtful 1,832 1,932
Less: Provision made 1,932 - 1,932 -
Unsecured loans
Considered Doubtful 2,34,373 2,34,190
Less: Provision made 2,34,373 - 2,34 190 -
Unsecured Time 8ills Discounted:
Consldered Doubtiul 6,312 6,312
Less: Provision made 6,312 - 6,312 -
Advanca Income Tax and T D S {Net of Provisions) 169 219
Other loans and advances {unsecured)
Considered Good 2,572 2222
Censidered Doubtiul 6 6
2,578 2228
Less: Provision made B 2572 B 2222
2,741 2,441
Note 11.01:  The Company had assigned under an assignment deed certain debls & recoverable consisling inter

allia stock on hire along with equal liabiliies of the Company to the extent of Rs. 26,62,92 thousand on
30.08.1998 to Vedachala Eleclronics & Financial Services Private Limited (VEFSPL). The Company had
discharged the assigned lizbilities of WVEFSPL on its failure to service the same in terms of the Assignment
deed, which has resulted in Rs.21,15,15 thousand {P Y Rs. 21,13,32 thousands) receivable from VEFSPL.
The company based on the estimated recovery has made a provision of Rs.21,15,15 thousand (P Y Rs.
21,13,32 thousands) against the raceivables of VEFSPL. The unsecured Loans as disclosed in the above
schedule includes this amount.

Note 11.02:  The balances in Secured Loans, Unsecured Loans and Other Loans & Advances as above are subject to
confirmation.

Note 11.03:  Other Loans and advances represents departmental deposit, tour advances, and other petty advances
made in the ordinary course of business.

NOTE 12:

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
{also Refer Note 12.01 below)
Interest accrued on Investments - 272
Other Recaivables (Unsecured)

Quistanding for a peried exceeding & months from the
date they are due for payment

Considered Good 92 60
Considered Doubtful 10,135 9.929
10,231 9,989
Less: Provision made 10,139 92 8,629 3]
Balance with banks
in Fixed Deposit Account 66 &8

Pledged with sales tax authorities Rs. 66 thousands
(P.Y. Rs. 86 thousands)

Note 12.01:

15 38

Other receivables represents sundry amounts due from borrowers, hirers etc., which are not material in
nature.
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Notes to Accounts Forming Part of Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ending 31¢ March, 2016

(Rs. In '000)
2015-18 2014-15
NOTE 13:
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Interest 1,195 1
NET REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 1,195 1
NOTE 14:
OTHER INCOME {also refer Note 14.01 below)
Interest on Bank Deposit 203 155
Interast on Other Deposits & Income tax refund ] 3
Miscellaneous Income 50 72
Rent received 1248 1323
Dividend on Shares held as stock in trade 283 283
Net actuarial gain on Gratuity Fund {maintained by LIC of India} 12 11
1,805 1,847
Note 14.01: Rent received represents amount of income accrued on cancellable operating lease.
NOTE 15:
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK IN TRADE (refer Note 15.01 below)
Current Year Previous Year
Quantlty Valus Quantity Value
Nos. Nos.
Opening Stock
Equity Shares (Quoted} 64,390 1 64,350 1
Equity Shares (Unquoted) 7,13,534 9,142 7,13,634 9,142
Preference Shares (Unguocted) 30 1 30 1
Total 777,954 9,144 TTT,954 9,144
Closing Stock
Equity Shares (Quoted) 64,380 1 64,390 1
Equity Shares {Unquoted) 713,534 g,142 7.13,534 8142
Preference Shares (Unquoted) 30 1 30 1
Total 777,954 9,144 777,954 9,144
Changes - =

Note 15.01: There are no purchases/sales of stock in trade during the year and also during the immediate previous year.
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(Rs. in '000)
2015-16 2014-15
NOTE 16:
EMPLOYEES' BENEFITS EXPENSE (refer Note 16.01 below)
Salary & Allowances 508 592
Staff Welfare Expenses - 7
Bonus & Incentives 21 20
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 52 58
Contrdbution to Gratuity Premlum 51 60
Contribution to ESI 7 19
639

126

Note 16.01: Disclosure as required under Accounting Standard 15 i.e. Employes benefits, given under Note No. 23.09.

NOTE 17:
FINANCE COSTS (refer Note 17.01 below)
Interest 97 485
Bank Charges 13 7
410 . 472
Note 17.01: Note No. 5.01 forms part of this nobe, which may also be referred to.
NOTE 18: (Also refer Note 18.01 below)
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
Depraciation on Tangible Assets (refer Note 6) 1,524 16,305
Less: Transferred from Revaluation Reserve (refer Note 2) -
1,524 16,305

Note 18.01: Dapreciation as above comprises of depreciation on the assets of which the useful life is determined o be
Nl as on 1st April 2014 Rs.NIl (PY Rs.1,49,85 thousands) and depreciaton for the year Rs. 15,24 Thousands

(PY Rs.13,20 thousands).

NOTE 18:

OTHER EXPENSES

Consultancy and Professlonal Charges 817

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 32

Electricity Charges 1

Sales Promotion Expenses 5

Repairs & Maintenance

- Building 37

- Others 21

Printing & Stationery 38

Postage & Telephone 13

Directors Sitting fees 12

Payment to Auditors ;

- Statutory Audit 40

— Other Services (certification work and lax audit) 10

— Service Tax 7 57

Registration & Filing fees 348

Rates and Taxes 67

Miscellaneous Expenses 47
1,685

39

597
16

224

g <

40
10

189
80

1,252



23X Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

(Rs. in '000)
2015-16 2014-15
NOTE 20:
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
{Also refer Note 20.01 below)
1. EXCEFPTIONAL EXPENSES:
Bad debts written off 11,200 1,602
11,200 1.602
2. EXCEPTIONAL INCOME : 7
Bad debis recoversd (2,585) (473)
Provision for NPA written back {16,458) {4,383)
{19,041) (4,836)
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (INCOME} : (7,841) (3.234)

Note 20.01: The present activity of the Company is being restricted fo recovery of dues and rapayment of the debts.
Accordingly the income of the Company depends upon the recoveries made during the perlod, which
varies substantially on year to year basis. Therefore the Company has disclosed the amount of Bad debts
recovered, reversal of provislons for NPA and Bad debts written off under the head “Exceptional Item".

NOTE 21:
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS:
{Also refer Note 21.01 below)

Income
Setilement credit (interest portion) 1,934 522
1,934 522

Note 21.01: Note No. 2.01 also forms part of this note, which may ba referred to.

NOTE 22:

EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE

&) Net profit {loss) available for equity sharsholder 8,517 1,375
{used as numeratcr)

b) Extracrdinary Income {as per Note No. 21} 1,934 522

c} Net profit {loss} before considering extraordinary itern 6,583 B53
{used as numerator)

d) Weighted Average No. of equity shares (used as Denominator) 83,80,961 83,80,961
Basic/Diluted Eamings per share before Extraordinary 0.79 .10
Income (c/d}

Basic/Diluted Eamings per share after Extraordinary tems (a/d) 1.02 0.16
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23X Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

Notes to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss year ending 31" Margh, 2016
NOTE 23: OTHER DISCLOSURE TO ACCOUNTS:

23.01

Corporats Information and Accounting Policies:

Corporate Information:

The Registered Office of the Company is at Manipal {State: Karnataka). The Company had commenced its buginess as Non-
Banking Financial Company registered wilh Reserve Bank of Indie as “Hire Purchase & Leasing Company”. However the
Raserve Bank of India has since cancelled the regisiration of lhe Company. The Company has stopped activilies of accepling
deposils from public/debenfures/subordinated debts, exlending loans, Hire Purchase and leasing activilies since 15t day of July
2002. The present activity of the Company is being mainly restricted to recovery of dues and repayment of the debts. The other
necessary details are belng given under Note 5.01.

Accounting Pollcles:

A DBasis of Accounting and Revenue Recognition:

1) The financial statements of tha Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles In India o comply with ihe Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companles Act,
2013, read wilh Rule 7 of lhe Comgpanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and ihe relevant provisions of lhe Companies Acl,
2013.The financial staterents are prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 as adopted consistently by the Company. All significant ilems of income & expenditure
are accounted on accrual system of accounting. The accounting policies adopted In the preparation of the financial
staterments are consislent wilh those followed in the previous year,

2) The Company has followed the Prudential Norms for income Recognition as prescribed by Reserve Bank of India for
Non-Banking Financial Companies. The principal write back pertaining to deposite & debentures (as stated in Note
2.01) has been directly taken to tha credit of Capital Reserva in the Balance Sheet, since the same is In the nature of
capital recaipl for the reasons as stated in Note 23.01.(1)

3)  Incorme by way of “Interest” & “Rent” is recognized on the time proporionale method, “Dividend income” is recogniced
when the unconditional right to receive the income is established.
Interest on Income Tax refund and miscellaneous income are accounted as and when received, since the same are
considered to be dus on the date of recaipt.

B Use of Estimates:
The preparalion of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires managemenl
0 meke eslimaias and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of asgels and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
liabllities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operatlons during the reporting period end. Atthough these
sstimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual resulls could differ from
these astimates. Difference batween the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are
known / matesialized.

C Invastments:
Investments held as long team, If any, are valued at cost. Provision for diminution In the vaiue of the investments is made
wherever the management Is of the opinion that such decling is other than temporary. Invesiments held as other than long
tarm investments, if any, are valued at cost or net realizable value whichevar is lower.

O Inventory:
Stock in trade is valued at cost of net realizable value whichever is lower except for unquoted shares, which are valued at
cost or breakup value, whichever Is lower,

E Fixed Assats:
Fixed Assets are shown at cost or revalued amount as the case may be, less Depreciation. The lease hold land shown at
revalued amounl. The revalued amounl on land has not been amortized to revaluation reserve. The Company has framed
the policy of amontizing such vaiue, on temmination of lease.

F Depreclation:

The depreciation for the curmenl year has been provided, by considering the useful Iife of the asset and considering the
residual value in accordance with the Schadule |l lo the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly the depraciable value {viz.
Cost of the Assel minus residual value} of ali assets (other than lease hold building) is being depreciated under straight
ling mathod prorata, over the useful life/remaining wseful life as the case may be. The depreciation on lease hold buildings
provided on straight line basls prorata, In such a manner that the asset Is fully written off over the period/iremaining pericd of
ihe lease or gver the useful life/remaining useful life, where such useful life/remaining useful life is less than the persiod of the
leasefremaining period of the lease, as the case may be. The Deprecialion on the revalusd portion of Buildings (both lease
hold and free hold) {i.e. excess of value afier revaluation cver the actual cost) has bean fully charged to statement of profil
and loss since 1° April, 2014, In the manner provided under Schedule |l to the Companles Act, 2013, Lease equallzation
writlen back fully in the case of leases, since the uselul fife of such assels expired.

G Employes Benefit:

The Company’s "Retirement Benefit Plan® and "Other Benefit Plans” comprises of Contribution to Providant Fund, Employee
State Insurance and Gratuity. Confribution to Provident Fund and Emplcyes State Insurance is being made al pre-
determined rates and are charged to the Staternent of Profit & Loss. The Company’s llabillty towards gratuity to amployses
is covered by group gratuity policy with LIC of India and accerdingly the premium paid, charged to the Slatement of profit &
loss. Deficit of present value of obligations (under Gratuity policy) over the fair vaiue of Gratuity plan assels duly charged
to the Statement of profit and loss, on year to year basis. Provision for leave encashment made on estimated basis.

There are no other retirement benefits/cther benefits are being provided by the Company.
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23.03

H

Operating Cycle:
Based on the nature of aclivities of the Company, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as cuirent and non-cument.

Taxes on Income:

The Company has charged off the Curent Income Tax to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities
recognised/provided in accordance with the Accounting Slandard 22. Deferred tax Is measured based on the tax rates and
lhe tax laws enacled or substentively enacted al the Batance Sheef date, on the liming differences baeing the difference
batween the taxable income and accounting income that originats in one pesiod and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent period. Deferred tax Assel is recognised, subjecl lo the considerations of prudence. Deferred tax asset so
recognised, is belng natted off to deferred tax llabillty or vice verse. Advance Income Tax Pald {Inciuding Tax deducted at
sowrce, tax pakt on self assessiment or otherwise) and provision for current Incoimne Tax {f any) are presented In the Balance
Shest after setting off the same against each other.

Capltal Resarve:

The principal write back pertaining to deposits, debeniures and Subordinated debts as stated in Nole No. 2.01, is in the
nature of capltal recaipt. The stand taken by the Corapany s also duly supported by the declsion of Jurisdlctional High Court
i.e. Honorable High Cowt of Kamalaka, as reporled in 286 ITR 310 (2006) (CIT Vs ICDS Lirnited} wherein it is held thal
swplus on purchase of own debentures is a Capital Receipt, not subject to tax and 248 CTR 214 (2011} (CIT Vs Compaqg
Eleciric Limited) wherein it was held that the waiver of ihe loan is a Capital receipt. In ihe case of the Company viz. CIT Vs
Manipal Finance Gorporation Limited (ITA No. 795 & 794/2008) the Hon. High Courl of iarnalake has dismissed the appeal
filod by the depariment cn the similar grounds. Considering the above, the same has been directly laken to the credil of
Capilal Reseive in lhe Balance Sheat.

Borrowing Cost:

Bomrowing cost are recognized as an expense In the year in which they are incwred except those which are directty
aftributable to acquisticn/construction of qualifying fixed assets, {as defined under Accounting Stendard 16), il the fime
such assets ara ready for use, in which case the borowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset.

Earnings per share:

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting atiributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares ouistanding during the year. Diluted earning
par share, if any is computed using the weighted average number of aquity shares and dilutive polential equity share
outstanding during the period except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

Impairment of Assats:

The Company has framed the policy of impairing the asset, when the carrying value of the assets exceeds its recoverable
amcunt, under the circumstances when the Company Is having the sources of information (whether intemal or extemal) that
an imgairment [oss may have occurred, Accordingly, impainment losses will be charged to profit and loss accountin the year
in which an assat is identified as impaired. The impaimment losses recognised in prior acoounting pericds is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

Contingent Llabliitles/Assots:

Provislons Involving substantial degree of estimation In measurement are recognlzed when there Is a present obligationas a
result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outfiow of resources. Pravisions not made in the account {which
ctherwize should have been made) are disclosed by way of appropriate note. Contingent liabililies are not recognized but
are disclosad in the notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized ner disclosed in the financial statements.

Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the Indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extracrdinary ltems and tax is adjusted
for the effects of iransactions of nor-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of pasi or fulure cash receipls or paymenils,
The cash fiows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segiegated based on the available
information. Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are shori-termn balances
{with an original maturty of thrge months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid Investrents that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Rent:
Leasa rent on cancellable operating leasa is recognized as Income in tha Statemant of Profit and Loss.

The Company has been incurming substantial losses over the last few years and major portion of its funds are blocked in non-
performing assets. In view of the same there is considerable uncertainty that the company will continue as & going concern
and meet its commitments to Its creditors. The accounts however have been prepared on the going concem basis In view of
managementl's efforls Lo setlle the liabilities with the debenlure holdars and subordinated debi holders by exploring the possibility
of submitting a new scheme and or settlement at discounted rates eic. as detailed in Note No. 5.01 and the managemeat is baing
hopeful of recovery of dues from berrowers so that dues of creditors can be setllad. Accordingty the management is of the opinion
that the lusses as aforesald and also the circumstances as stated In Note 5,01 of the financials statement will not have adverse
effect on the funclioning of Lhe Company.

The Company has not recognised the net deferred tax assel whigh constitutes malnly of carry forward losses, excess depreciation
claimed in Income Tax and Provisions for doubtful debts, as a matter of prudence.

Disclosures in respect of related parlies wilh whom lransactions have taken place during lhe vear:

A

Key Managament Personnel and his relatives
Sri T Narayana M Pai, Managing Director
Sr T Sanjay Pai, Chief Finance Officer
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23.05

23.08

23.07

23.08

23.09

B. Other Related Companles
Vedachala Electronics and Financial Services Pvi. Limifed
Manipal Housing Finance Syndicate Limited

Delails of transactions ara as follow: (Rs. in '000) {Rs. in "000)
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
A, Remunesalion

— Key Managemant Personnel and relatives
Sri Sanjay Pal  Rs.2,10/ (P. Y. Rs.2,03)

B. Qutstanding balances as at 31.03.2018

Due fo the company
— Other Related Companies
{Vedachala Eleclronics & Financial Services Pvi. Limited 21,15,15 21,13,32
Rs. 21,15,15 {P.Y. Rs. 21,13,32)
Payable by the company (lease deposi}
— Other Related Companies
{Manlpal Housing Finance Syndicate Limiled Rs. 75,00 75,00 75,00
{P.Y. Rs. 75,00)

C. Provisions made on the balancss from related parties
— Other Ralated Companles 21,1515 21,1332
Vedachala Elsctronles & Financlal Servicas Privata Limited Rs. 21,15,15
{P. Y.Rs. 21,13,32)

0.  Iuveatmant In Othar Related Companias
In equity shares
Manipat Housing Finance Syndicate Limlted Rs.50,37 P. Y. R5.90,37 (899100
shares of Re.10 sach)

Contingent & other Liabilities :

A. Liahility on debentures assigned to Vedachala Electronics and Financial Services Private Limited inclusive of interest accrued
is Rs. 14,87 thousand. (P.Y. Rs. 17,99 thousand), without considering inlerest due on or after 1% day of July 2002.

B. Liability in respect of damages and others in respect of suits against the Company before various Courts, Consumer Courls etc.
(in respect of repaymenl of deposits/debentures/debts with interest & other costs) has not been quantified and provided, due to
lack of imformation with the company and also considering the fact thal many of such customess have approached the Company
for settternent at discounted rates. The colleclion of information is under process.

C. No provision made for disputed income tax liability for various years wherevers department has prefemed an appeal before the
Honorable Tribunal, Honorable High Court and Honorable Supreme Court. The guestion of quantification of liabiiity thereon, does
net arise, for the reason that the cases were allowed in favour of the Cempany, by the lower appeillate authorities.

The Management of the Company is of the opinion that the directors of the Company are nof disqualified ws 164(2) of Companies

Act, 2013, [in spita of the facd that the Company has stopped repaying matured Debentures/debls/depcsils and interest thereon as

detailed in Note No. 5.01], for the reason that the Company is exploring the possibility of preseniing a new scheme of arrangement,
as detailed in the aforesaid note.

The assets of the Company are not vaiued, considering the cost involved herein. However the managemenl is of the opinion thal
the cairying cost of the asset {including that of leased assets after considesing the Lease equalization Charge)} does not axceed its
recoverabla value. Furthes the Company does not have any information whether internal or external, that indicates that “impairment
loss may have occurmed”. Accordingly the question of impairment of assets does not arise.

The Company has not verified the Fixed Assels under lease falling under the head “leased machineries and equipment & leased
vehicles and fumniture, considering lhe fact that lhe present value of such asssels are not material and also considering the cost
involved in the aforesaid verification.

Employee Benefits:

Brisf description of the Plans :

a) The Company has two schemes for long-term benefils such as provident fund and gratuity. In case of funded schemas, the funds
are recognized by the Income lax authorities and administered through trustees / appropriale authorilies. The Company’s defined
contribution plan is employees’ provident fund {under the provisions of the Employess’ Provident Funds and Miscellansous

Provisione Act, 1952) wherein the Company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions.

The Company is also contribuiing towards Empioyee State Insurance Plan, as per statutory requirements, wherein the Company
has no further obligation beyond making the contributions.

The Company is also providing employee bensfit by way of ancashment of eamed leave. The provision for the same has been
mada on estimated basis. The amount involved therein is not material, considering the size of the Company. The Company has
not opted for actuadal valuation, considering the cost involved and also the concept of materiality.

The Company’s defined benefit plan is gratuity.

Charge to lhe Profit and Loes Accounl based on contributions:

The Company's contribution to Provident Fund charged o Siatement of Proft and Loss during the year is Rs.52 thousands.

(P. Y.: Rs.58 thousands).

The Company's Contribution to Employee Siale Insurance Plan charged to Statement Profit and Loss during the year is Rs. 7
thousands (P. Y. Re.19 thousands}.

The Companies liability towards gratuity to employeas covered by group gratuity policy with LIC of India. Premium paid on this
account is fs.51 thousands (P. Y. Rs. 80 thousands).

The detail of provision for leave encashment is as under: Provision as on 1* Apal, 2015 Rs.88 thousands (P. Y. Rs.88 thousands)
Amount charged to the Stalement profil & loss during the year Rs. Nil (P. Y. Rs. Nil). Actual paymenl during the year is Nil (P. Y.

Rs.Nil). Frovision as on 31* March, 2018 Rs.38 thousands (P. Y. Rs.88 thousands).

Disclosures for defined gratuity benefit plans basad on actuarial reposts obtained from Life Insurance Corperation of India.as on

31st March, 2016:

210 2,03

90,37 90,37

b

-

C

-
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Valuvation Method: Projected Unht Credit Method.

Armount in Rs.'000s

Current Year Pravious Year
Changes in presant value
Opening value of obligafions 130 26
Cuirrent servica cost T 18
Interest cost 10 11
Actuarial loss / (gain) 12 9
Benefits paid (14} (134)
Closing vaiue of obiigations (# see note below} 145 130
Change In Falr Value of Assets
Opening fair value of pian asssts 147 232
Expecled raturn on plan assels 12 20
Contributions by employer 29 29
Bengfits paid g14 (134)
Closing fair value of plan assets (# see not below} 7 147
Funded Status 29 17
Amount recognised In the Balance Sheet
Presant value of obligations as at yaar end 146 130
Fair value of pian assets as at year end 174 147
Amount not recognised as an asset - -
Funded Status 29 17
Net asset / (liability) recognised as on 31st March 29 17
Expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss Account
Current sarvice cost T 18
Interest on defined benefit obligatlon 10 11
E.:geded retum on plan assets (12} {20
Net actuarial loss / (gain) recognised in the current year 12 9
Effect of the limlt in Para 59(b) of AS 15 ol *
Totat expensas 1 18
Asset Informatlon (as per para120'(:gquS15} * "
Principal actuarial assumptions u;
Discount rate (p.a.) 8% 8%
Expeciod rate of rétum on plan assets (p.a.) ¢
Salary Escalation 3.50% 3.5%
Withdrawal Rate : . ¢
Rate of Increase In compensation levels i * *
Expecled average remaining working lives of ergrlogees in number of years - b
Experiance ad[ustments (as pef para 120{ n) o A5 15 :

Expected employer's contribution for the next year

{*) The LHe Insurance Corporation of India haa not given thesa informatien.
The Company has written to Life Insurance Corporation of India to fumish information of the Defined Gratuity Benaflt Plan, inthe
manner required under Accounding Standard 15. Accordingly the Life Insurance Corporation of India has given the information
as given above, which has been relied by the Auditors.

{#) The Company has made the provislon of Rs.353 thousands In reapect of deficit of Presant value of obligations over the fair
value of Plan Assets, during the year ending 31st March, 2008 and therefore the question of making furiher provision does not
anse.

¢} Data regarding lhe Defined Gratuity Benefil obligalion and fair value of planned assets sre as undes;

(Rs.'000s)
[Particulars 201518 201415 201314 201213 201112
Closing value of chiigations 148 130 226 187 189
Closing fair value of plan asssis 174 147 232 190 152
Net aggeV/[liabili i r end 28 7 [] [t3] {17}

23,10 In the opinion of the Board of Direclors, the agsols lisled under the head Non Current Assels & Current Assels (other than Fixed Assels
and Non Cuirent investrnents) in the Balance Sheet {viz: assets coverad under Note No.7 to 12), have & value on resiisation in the ordinary
course of business at least equal lo the amount at which they are stated.

2311 The Company has eamed Profit during tha year and algo during immediate previows financial year l.e year ending 31 March, 2015, due to
Excepiional Incoms as stated in Note 20 and Exiraordinary Income as slaled in Nols 21,

23.12  The Company is operating under one Geographical and Business segmeni. Thesefore the question of making disclosures as required under
Accounting Standard 17 does not arlse.

23,13  The nature of pending litigations has been disclesed in Note 23.05. Howsever the impact on the financlal position of the Company Is nol
asceriainable for the presen, for ihe reasons as menlioned therein.

23.14  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any maierial fcraseeable losses.

2315  The Company ia not required to transfer any amount to the investar educaticn and protection fund for the reason that these are no unclaimed
deposlis/debenturesisubordinated dabis as on 31 March, 2016 and also for the reasonsg as given Note 5.01.

23,16  The Company has, in all malerial respects, an adequate inlemal finangial conirols syslem over financial reporiing and such inlemal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2018, subject to the Noie No. 23.08 of financial statement.

2317  Previous Year's amounts are regrouped/reciassifiedirearanged, wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date
For PAI NAYAK & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0090805
Sdrt Sdr’- Sdrt S~
T Narayan M Pal Vinoda Sherigar T Sanjay Pal Ammunje Venkatesh Nayak
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer Partner
DIN: 00101633 DIN:QT224755 Membership No.: 204685

Place : Manipal

Date

1 30" May, 2016
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Schedule to the
Balance Sheat of a Non-Banking Financlal Company
(as required in terms of Paragraph 98B of
Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Diractions, 1998)
Manipal Finance Corporafion Ltd., Manipal
As on 314 March, 2018
{Rs. in fakhs)

Particulars Amounl Amount
Outstanding Overdue
Llablitles side:
(1) |Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs
Inclusive of Interest accrued thereon but not pald
{(a) Debentures : Secured 620 620
: Unsecurad o 1]
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
() Deferred Gredits 0 0
{c) Tarm Loans 1} 1]
(d} Intar-corporate loans and bommowing 1} 1]
{e) Commercial Paper
{f) Public Deposits 18 16
{g) Cther Loans {subordinated debts, working capital loans) 1901 1901
{2} | Break-up of {1}{f) above (Outstanding public depesits
jnclusive of intereat accrued thereon but not paid);
(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures 0 0
{b) In tha form of partly secured debantures 0 0
i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of security
(c} Other public deposits 16 16
Amount
Qutstanding
(before provisions)
Assets sjdae:
(3} | Break-up of Loans and Advances Including bills
recelvables (other than those Included In (4) below):
(a) Secured 18
(b} Unsecured {inciuding deblors) 2508
{4) | Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and
hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under
sundry dabtors:
(a) Financlal leass 187
(b) Operating lease 1]
{i} Stock on hire including hire charges under
sundry debtors:
(a) Assels onhire 975
(b} Repossessed Assets 0
(i) Hypothacation loans counting towards EL/HP activities
(&) Loans whess assets have been repossessed 0
(b) Loans olhes than (a) abova 0
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(5}

Break-up of Investments:
Current Investments: (Stock In trade consldered)
1. Quoted:

(1) Shares.  (a) Eaquity (Rs. 1000}

(b} Preference

(i) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of Mutual Bonds = ICIC! Prudential Plan

(iv) Govermnment Securilies

(v) Others (please specify)

2. Unguoted [Stock in trade considered)
i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b} Prefersnce
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iil) Units of Mutual Bonds
(iv) Govemment Securilies

(v) Others (please specify}

Leng Term Investments:
1. Quoted:
(i) Shares: {a) Equity
{b) Praferance
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of Mutual Bonds
(v) Govemment Securities
(v) Others (please specify)
2. Unquoted:
(i} Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Prefarence
(i} Debantures and Bonds
{iiiy Units of Mutual Bonds
(iv}) Government Securities
(v} Otners (pleass specify}— IDBI Bonds
Interest accrued on Investments
Fixed deposit with Nationalised Barnks

== = I = = = } (=R =P = N =N = | L=J =R =R = R = R =]

[=p=J === =-0-1"

(6}

Borrower group-wise classlfication of all leased assets, stock on hire and loans and advances:

Category

Amount net of provisions

Secured

Unsecured

Total

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
{b) Companies in lhe same group
(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties (*}

Totad

[=Jp=J==0=]

oo CcC oo

[=3R =T = = =]

7}

Securities {both quoted and unquoted):

Category

Market Valua/
Break-up or Fair
Value of NAV

Book Value
(net of
provision)

1. Refated Partles
(a) Subsidiaries
{b) Compaaies in the sams group
{c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

Total

o oo Cc o

0
0
80
0
90
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{8) | Other Informaticn

Particulars Amount
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assats NIL i]
{a) Related Parties NIL 0
{b) Other than related parties (*} NIL 3,660
(i) Met Non-Performing Assets NIL 1]
{a) Related Parties NIL 0
(b) Other than related parties NIL 0

(i) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Note: (*) Due from VEFSPL is not considered as related party due to the reason that such due has arisen on account of
repayment of debenture llabllity assigned to VEFSPL, as detalled In Note No. 11.01 of notes to the account.

Disclosure
sl. Disclosures of Loans and Advances and Investmants in its own As at
In tha accounts of shares by thelr Subsidiares, Asscclates (as certiflead by the
No. Managament) as required by Clause 32 of Listing Agreament 31.03.2016
1. | Parent {Manipal Finance | Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries by name and NA
Caorporation Limited) amount
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates by name and Nil
amount
Loans and advances in the nature of loans whers there is
(i) no repayment schedule or repayment beyond seven Nil
years or
{ii} no Interest or interest below Section 372A of Companies Nil
Act by name and amount
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which Nil
directors are interested by name and amount
2. | Subsidiary (No such Loans and advances in the nature of loans to parent by name and NA
Subsidiary Company) amount
Loans and advances In the nature of loans to associates by name and NA
amount
Loans and advances in the nature of loans wherethere is NA
{iy no repayment schedule or repayment beyond seven NA
years or
(iiy no interest or interest below Section 372A of Companies NA
Act by name and amount
Loans and advances In the nature of loans to firs/companles in which NA
directors are interested by name and amount
3. [ Parent (Manipal Finance | Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and subsidi- Nil
Corporation Limited) ary company, when the company has made a loan or advance in the

nature of loan

Notes: 2. There are no Subsidiary Companies and therefore the particulars as per SI. No. 2 are stated Not Applicable,

b. Due from Vedachala Electronics & Financial Services Pvi. Lid, (VEFSPL) is not considered as related party
due to the reason that such due has arisen on account repayment of debanture liability assigned to VEFSPL.
As detailed in Note No. 11.01 of the accounts.
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MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988
REGISTERED OFFICE: MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104

FORM NO. MGT-11

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Sectlon 105(6) of the Companles Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companles (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

]

E-mail Id Folio No./Client ID DPID
1/We, being the member(s) of ... shares of the above named company. Hereby appoint
Name : E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature, or failing him
Name : E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature, or failing him
Name : E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature, or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll} for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 33" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on
Thursday, 29*" September, 2016 at 3.30 p.m. at the Regd. Offce: “Manipal Houss", Manipal — 576 104 and at any adjournment thereof in respect

of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Sl. - Vote
No. Resolution(s) For Aaainst
1 Adoption of statement of Proft & Loss, Balance Sheet, Report of Director’s and Auditor’s for the financial
*_|year 31® March, 2016
2 Re-appointment of M/s Pai Nayak & Associates, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors & fixing
-__|their remuneration
3. |Re-appointment of Sri Raghavendra Nayak, Director
Signed this day of 2016
Affix
Revenue
Stamp
Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder Signature of the Shareholder

across Revenue Stamp
Notes: 1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours

before the commencement of the Meating.
2) The proxy need not be a member of the Company.

ATTENDANCE SLIP
CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988
(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall)
33" Annual General Meeting on Thursday, the 29™ September, 2016 at 3.30 p.m.
ttending

Fullname of the mer

(In block capitals)
Ledger Folio No./Client ID No. No. of shares held:
Name of Proxy
(To be filled in, If the proxy attends instead of the member)

1 hereby record my presence at the 33" Annual General Meeting of the Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd., Manipal House, Manipal — 576 104,
on Thursday, the 29" September, 2016 at 3.30 p.m.

{Member's/Proxy’s Signature)

Note: 1) Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the mesting, since further copies will not be available.
2) The Proxy, to be effective should be deposited at the Regi d Office of the Company not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the
commencement of the meeting.
3) AProxy need not be a member of the Company.
4) Inthe case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by Proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote
of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members.
The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member from attending in person and voting at the meeting.
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FORM B

(Eor Audit Report with modified opinion on Annual Financial Statements)

financial statements and management response
to the qualification in the Directors Report.

I. Name of the Company Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd
CIN : L65910KA1984PLC005988

2 Annual financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2016

3. Type of Audit qualification Qualified Opinion

4. Frequency of qualification Same as qualified last year.
(SL.No.1 of the annexure is repetitive since
1999-2000 and SI.No.2 of the annexure is
repetitive  since  2003-04  with  some
modifications on year to year basis).

i Draw attention to relevant notes in the annual Reference to Notes to Accounts: Note 23.02

& 5.01 of Notes to Accounts of the Audited
Financial Statement for the year ended 31°
March, 2016. :

6. Additional comments from the board/audit
committee chair

7. To be singed by
e CEO/ Managing Director

e CFO

¢ Auditor of the company

L e  Audit Committee Chairman

For Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

Lo

T Narayan M Pai (DIN 00101633)
Managing Director

N

For Pai Nayak & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.009090S

e

Mgl

Chairman of Audit Committee / CFO

Place : Manipal
Date : 30/05/2016

CA Ammunje Venkatesh Nayak
Partner
Membership No.204685

Place: Manipal
Date: 30/05/2016




Annexure

Extract from Auditors Report to the Members of Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd.
Basis for the qualified opinion:

1. We draw attention to Note No.23.02 of the financial statements. The Company has incurred losses and its majority
of funds are blocked in Non Performing Assets, raising a doubt about the Company to continue as a going conceri.
The Company has presented a scheme of arrangement for restructure of liabilities as detailed in Note No.5.010of the
financial statements and subsequently withdrawn the same, for reasons given therein. The Company is exploring the
possibility of presenting the new scheme of arrangement, as detailed in the aforesaid Notes. The account, however
have been prepared on a “going concern basis” in view of management perception as detailed in Note No.23.02 as
aforesaid. However we are unable to comment on the ultimate reliability of Company’s assets including the Fixed
Assets under lease. Accordingly we are also unable to comment on the Company’s ability to settle its debts/liabilities
(including Deposits, Subordinated debts and Secured Redeemable Debentures.)

2. We draw the attention to Note 5.01 of the Financial Statements. The Company has stopped (i) repayment of
matured debentures & matured subordinated debts and (ii) payment of interest on debentures and subordinated debis
from I' day of July 2002 and proposed a scheme of arrangement before the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka, as
referred to in the aforesaid Note (which is since withdrawn and we are informed that the Company is exploring the
possibility of presenting a new scheme of arrangement) .Further the Company has also stopped repayment of deposits
matured for repayment from the aforesaid date. All the debts of the Company i.e debentures, subordinated debts and
deposits are matured for vepayment. The Company has provided for interest on deposits/debentures/debts upto 30"
June 2002 and not thereafier.

There are also many instances of settlement of debentures, debts and public deposits at the discounted rates with
partial/full waiver of interest, which has been done with mutual consent. We are also informed that the remaining
depositors/ debenture holders / debt holders have approached the Company for settlement of the dues and ithe
Company is in the process for the same.

As per the information given to us various consumer courts (including the Appellate Authorities/Courts acting under
the Consumer Protection Act) have passed the orders, for the repayment of certain deposits/debentures/debts with
interest and other costs. The detailed information on these orders have not been made available to us. However we
are informed that the Company has settled the dues of such customers in many cases, which also includes settlement at
discounted rates with partial/full waiver of interest and many of the remaining such persons have approached the
Company for settlement,

We draw the attention to the Statement made by the Management of the Company in note no. 5.01 of the Financial
Statement which is as follows: “Considering the facts that the Company has settled the dues of depositors/debenture
holders/debt holders at the discounted rates as stated above, that the remaining customers have approached the
Company for settlement of their dues, that the orders issued by the various consumer courts including the appellate
authorities/courts therein, that the Company has settled the many of such consumer court cases, that the total debts of
the Company have reduced considerably because of settlement as aforesaid and that the Company is exploring the
possibility of framing the new scheme of arrangement, it is not feasible for the Company to ascertain accurately its
liability on any given date ™.

Considering all the facts as given above, we qualify our opinion that it is not feasible for us to ascertain accurately
the liability of the Company as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

For MANIPAL FINANCE CORPNRATION |75,

Mataging Director




ANNEXURE 1

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications {for audit report with modified opinion) submitted along-with Anaual
Audited Financial Results  (Standalone and Consolidated separately}

statement on Impact of Audit Qualificatians for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2016,
{522 Regulations 33/52 of Ei:e_S}EBI.{LQ{)R} Regulations (Amendment), 2016}

Name of the Company: MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATIN LTD (CIN: L65910KA1984PLCO05988)

I SiMo. | Particulars Audlted Figures | Adjusted Figures
: {as reported {audited figures
before after adjusting
adjusting for for qualifications}
: quelifications)
L | Tumover/Totalincome ot fpplicable | Not Applicable
2. Total Expenditure : ' HotAppianle | Not Applicabis
3 Net Profit/(Loss) G NotaApplicable < | Net Aoplicable
4, Earnings PerShare .~ Notappleable | NotApgiicanle
5. Total Assets - : Mot Apglicatide Not Agplicabile
. Total lizbilities Net Applicable Mot Applicatie
7. Wet worth e Not Appiicable Net Applizable
g Any other financial item(s) (a5 feit appropriate by the | Not Appieabis | NetAppioabis
L managernent} i v
in, udit Qualification (each audit qualification separatelyl: :
. Details of Audit Qualification: Enclosed - i

b Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinicn
c. Frequency of gualification: Same as qualified last year. {Si80.1 of the annexure is
repetitive since 1999-2000 and SLNo.2 of the annexure is repetitive since 2003-04
with some modifications on year to year basis).
4. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management
Views: Not Applicabla,
& For Audit Qualification(s] where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:
] Management’s estimation on the impact of audic qualification: Not Applicable,
(i) I Management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: Not
Applicable,
{refer Note 23.02 and 5.01 of Notes to Actounts of the Audited Flnandal
Statement for the year ended 31% march, 2016.) _
{ii)  Auditors’ Comments on (i} or (i} above: Notes to auditad financial statement
asstaled by the Management in {ii} above is self-explanatory.

| Signatories;

i, : W
i *  CEQ/Managing DirectorX it R
3} . i,_;v!\
. o R
o \ _
B
«  Audit Committee Chairman X A
A : T
; ' . t
'+ Statutory Auditor X AT BN,

Flace: Manipal
Daze: 30/05/2016

I




Arnexure

{-xtract from Auditors Report to the Members of Manipal Finance Corporation Lid.

Basis for the qualified opinion:

1. Weo draw aitention to Note No.23.02 of the financial siciemenis. The Company has incurved losses and iis majoriiy
of funds are bocked in Non Performing Assels, raising a dowbt about the Company to continue as'a going conmcern.
Vhe Compeany has presented a scheme of arrangement for restrucnme of liabilities as detailed in Note No 3.01of the
Snanciad statements and subsequently withdrawi the same, for reasons given therein. The Company is exploring the
possihility of presenting [fz@ new scheme of arrangement, os detailed in the aforesaid Notes. The aecomnt, however
heve been prepared on a “going concern basis " in view of management perception as defailed in Note N¥o.23.02 as
ioresaid. However we are wnable 1o comment on the wltitate veliability of Company’s assets including the Fived
Assers wider lease. Accordingly we are also unable to comment on the Company s ability fo setile fis debis/liabilities
\ Suhordinated debts and Secured Redeemable Debentures.)

wling Deposi

2 W draw the attention to Note 3.01 of the Finonctal Siatements.  The Company has stopped (6 repayament of
i zarci debentures & matured subordingted debis and (5 payment of interest on debentures cmu subordinated debis
" day of Julv 2002 and proposed a scheme of arrangement before the Honble High Court of Kamatakes as
s exploring lhe

Jiewn 7
i ff-wu! to i the aforesaid Note twhich is since withdrinen and we e formed thar the Compeaiy
of presenting o new scheme of arvangementt Further the C Gnpany has also stupped repaviient of deposits
wnitired jor repavment fron the a/ur;’\aui date. AIf the debts of the Company i.¢ debentires. subordinated debts und
depasits are matured for repavment. The Company hus provided for nerest on deposiisidebemures'debis upto 30

Frare 2002 coidd nox r]’wr«qﬂea !

e alvo many instances of settlement of debentures, debrs and public deposits ar the discounted rates itk

pertialfi] waiver of inferest, which hay been done with mutuat conseni. We are also informed thay ihe remialning

depositors’ debenture holders / debt holders have approached the Company for sexlerient of the dues and ihe
Company s in the process Jor the sume.

ities Conres acting uneer

s por the informarion given 1w us various consumer courls (inchuding rhe Appeliate Autho
e Cansimer Protection Act) have passed the orders. for the repayment of certain deposiis’debentures/debis with
interest cod viher costs. The detailed information on these orders have not been mude available o us. However we
are informed that the Compeny has settled the dues of such customers in mwny cases, which alvo invludes settlement ar
discenmted rates with portialifull woiver of interesy and many of the remaining such persons have approdached the
Compeiy for setilement,

Ve e the attention To the Statement made by the Management of the Compaty i note no. 3.07 of the Finuncial
Stafement whici is as follows:  “Considering the facts that the Compuny hus setded the dies of a‘epmriw silehenture
holdders deht holders atf the discounted runes as s‘mrgg;’ ahove, thar the remaining cusfomers have approcched the
Company for settlement of their dues. that the orders isswed by the various consuner courts inciuding the appeliate
divsicourts therein, that the Company has seitied the many of such conswmer court cases, fhat the total ”" bts of
wmpany have veduced considerably because of settlement as aforesoid and that the Company is exploring the
tity of framing the new scheme of arrangenieni, i is not Sfeasible for the Company fu ascertain aeciately its
s on any given dule”

Considering oll the facts os given above, we qualify owr opinion that it is not feasible for us 1o ascertain accurately
the Hahility of the Compaiy as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

For RABIPAL FINANCE (ORPNRATION 7D,






